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To Our Fellow Stockholders: 

Alexander & Alexander's 1991 financial 

results were disappointing, but we made 

solid progress toward achieving the Com- 

pany's long-range goals. 

Poor worldwide economic conditions 

dampened overall demand for many broking 

and consulting services. Additionally, weak 

pricing conditions continued in primary 

property and casualty insurance lines, par- 

ticularly in the United States. Fiducialy 

investment income was significantly lower 

because of falling interest rates. 

The Alexander Consulting Group, our 

human resource management consulting 

operation, overcame recessionary pressures 

in many parts of the world. Their revenues 

increased through innovative consultation, 

and profits grew as a result of improved 

productivity. 

Weak pricing conditions continued 

in pnpnmuy3/ p o p e q  and casualty 

insurance lines, particulady in the 

United States. 

Benefits of our long-term business strat- 

egy and investments in Europe were evi- 

dent. Strong revenue gains were achieved by 

Alexander Howden Limited and Alexander 

Howden Reinsurance Broken Limited, 

A&A's London-based wholesale and rein- 

surance broking subsidiaries. They 

expanded market share and also benefited 

from insurance rate increases that began 

appearing in certain aviation, marine and 

energy markets. 

focused company. 

Increased revenues by A&A's European 

retail broking operations were linked in part 

to the liberalization ofcommerce in the 

European community where A&A has a 

well-established office nerwork. 

Overall, including a previously 

announced special charge of $75.6 million, 

A&A had a net loss of $12.6 million, or 

$0.31 per share, for the year ending Decem- 

ber 31. The charge reflects costs associated 

with the restructuring of A&A's retail oper- 

ations as well as an increase in reserves estah- 

lished for previously reported contingencies 

and the write-down of certain intangible 

assets. 

Excluding the special charge and other 

one-time expenses, net profit was $37.8 

million, or $0.93 per share. Operating reve- 

nues were $1.37 billion, an increase of $31 

million over 1990. Operating expenses 

increased 5 percent when non-comparable 

items in 1991 and 1990 are excluded. 

Cash flow was strong during 1991, in part 

because of our cash- and capital-manage- 

ment programs. At year end, debt levels 

were lower than at any point since 1986. 

(Additional financial information is con- 

tained in Management's Discussion and 

Analysis, beginning on Page 18.) 

Of 1991 developments, the restructuring 

has the most far-reaching implications for 



clients and shareholders. I t  reflects a 

process of adjusting to fundamental changes 

within the global insurance industry. By cre- 

ating a leaner, more client-focused company, 

A&A is taking steps to deal with the most 

extreme effects of the insurance pricing 

cycles that have buffeted brokers in recent 

years. 

We also anticipate that restructuring will 

improve client service while saving $18 mil- 

Lion in 1992. We expect to achieve this by 

operating in a more innovative way. 

For example, the restructuring charge 

includes costs associated with implementa- 

tion of a business segmentation strategy. In 

applying this strategy, we intend to use our 

resources more effectively and to enhance 

specialized, value-added services for industly 

segments. We also expect to create more 

clearly defined career opportunities for 

employees. 

We are enhanciy specialized, value- 

& s h e s  for industry segments. 

Business segmentation has proved suc- 

cessful within the Alexander Consulting 

Group as well as among A&A retail broking 

operations in Australia, Canada and the 

United Kingdom. The strategy is being 

expanded in the U.S. by Ron W. Forrest, 

who in September was named chairman, 

chiefexecutive officer and president of our 

U S .  retail operation. He formerly was head 

ofour U.K. retail subsidiary and more 

recently responsible for global business 

development. 

The Ofice ofthe Chairman: From leb deputychanmen Michael K. Whrte and Wllinm M 

Wllson with T!nsley H. Iwm charrman and chiefexecubve officer 

Looking ahead, our operating plans 

assume that difficult business conditions will 

continue in 1992. In addition to the 

restructuring, we are reinforcing A&A's 

core-business emphasis with the sale of cer- 

tain non-core operations. I am confident 

that these actions will improve profitability 

and contribute to our goal ofgenerating 

more stable earnings. 

During this time of great change, I am 

grateful to A M ' S  employees for their hard 

work and dedication in sewing our clients. 

Through our joint efforts, I believe that we 

will meet-and exceed-the expectations of 

our clients and shareholders. 

linsley H. Irvin 

Chairmnn of the Bani ,  

P&t 6 ChtefEuerutme qffiur 
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Paris. Fmnce Client Since 191 0 

Neurly 1,000 mzin coaches oparted by Parir-based Wgom-Lits, includitg the fabled Orient &press, haw mzveled across the 
Eumpzn continentfm mure than a centuy. 



Europe 

The Orient Express s ~nstantly rernl- 

nlscent of luxury European traln 

travel. 

Snce 1910, the world-famous 

coaches have been Insured wlth the 

help of S G  C.A., A&& French brok 

ing company 

"The pooliv awaygementfov health cwyfw 

m e  than 30,000 Wapis-Zits emplolowes in five 

counnier is one ofthefirst f w  a French 

Compagnie Internatonale des 

Wagons-Lits el du Tourlsme, based 

in Paris, isa well-known name in 

European transportation More than 

950 Wagons-Lits coaches traverse 

the continent, from Egypt to Poland. 

London to Venice. 

The firm has many interests in the 

travel industry. ranging from the 

tamed cable cars that ascend near 

Mont Blanc to travel agencies, res- 

taurants and catering companies. 

Meeting Wagons~Llts' diverse and 

growing rsk management needs 

requires ciose cooperaton among 

A8A's European network offtces 

For example, our tes with 

Wagons-Lits were recently  strength^ 

ened following its acquisition of Plck- 

fords Busmess Travel. This leadng 

travel company is a longtime cllent at 

Alexander Sfenhnuse II K Llmlted, 

our London-based brok~ng com- 

pany A&& London and Paris 

offces now lointly seiwce ths  grow^ 

1"Q frm. 

" Wephed  the insurance fw Eump's hghest 

cunstnutianpmjct, mar Mont Bhnc. The 

cab& car instahtian t a k e s ~ s e ~ m  3,842 

A&As European network has 

offces n more than 60 cties con 

centrated in the malor ndustr8al and 

commerc~al centers Wth our net 

work established we are focusmg 

efforts on pan European cooperation 

and enhanced services 

Paul Subrim 

Employee Benelils Manager 

SGCA 
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Kimberly-Clark Client Since 1986 

Kimberb-Clad Cwpwatim selk comnrnerpmdwtr in 150 countries. Thir mannj5cturi~phnt in Paris, Texas, pdnces Hu&cs dir- 

psabk dlaperr, Kimber[y-Clad's best-selliwpmdwt. 



The AmencadCanada 

Centralzed risk management 

planning helps to avoid costly gaps 

in local policies, and bener ensures a 

consistent level of coverage world- 

wide. Global programs also leverage 

A&A's buylng power to secure a 

cost-effectwe package of insurance 

and services 

"Fmm a U.S. base, Ae5A mts ax an exten- 

J,", Moss r i m  of the client's risk manclgenunt depamnent, 
ACCOUO~ Execubve 

A&A Dallas 
coordinutitg cmwges fwplan fi around 

Few household products have the 

name recognition of those manufac- 

tured by Kimberly-Clark. 

Wlth manufacturing plants in 19 

countries-and consumers around 

the world-the Fortune 100 mullina- 

tional cannot gamble on a frag- 

mented risk management program. 

"Kimbw[y-Clark's captive reiusurance is placed 

throqh an exclusive Alexandm Ho~vden fuciliq, 

Japan, Fmnce and Gerrrmny. " -Mark Houchw 

A&&answer: global insurance 

programs. On a worldwide basis. 

various propertylcasualty coverages 

are managed from A W s  Dallas 

office, in close coordination with 

Kimberly-Clark's risk management 

department. 

The benefits are clear Coverages 

arranged through local A&A onices 

are tailored to regional differences in 

laws, regulations and language. 

the u~wld. " 

A&A professionals throughout 

North Ameraa. As~aiPacific. Europe 

and the Middle East support regional 

Klmberiy-Clark managers. A captive. 

managed by Alexander Insurance 

Managers In Bermuda, offers stabil- 

ity and capacity. 

With one of the world's most 

extensive rlsk management 

networks-more lhan 300 offices in 

80 countries-A&A helps clients 

effectively assess, control and trans- 

fer risk 

Mark Boucher 

D,iecloi 

Alexander Howden Llmiled 
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Client Since 1979 

Bwal Limited u one of Awhalh's l e d i y  compnia in the buildiy and constrwrion m a h k  indumies. Itr 1,200 opwatiy sites 

d w l d e  include the Montnxe Qtram, in Vicwrh, one of the lugest q u & s  in the Southern Hemuphex 



Paul !&oniog 

Ass~sfaol General Manager 

Alexander Stenhouse Lrmrled, Sydney 

From limestone and coal to natural 

gas and petroleum, few companies 

handle raw natural resources on the 

Scale of Boral Limited 

Long a leadng manufacturer of 

bulding and constructon materials 

in Australla. the company is increas- 

ingly involved overseas, supplyng 

marketsthroughoutthe US., the 

U K  . continental Europe, the Paclfc 

and Southeast Asla. 

"Where required, AeA's Global Business Unit 

in S i v p o r e  he@ m cwrdinate and implement 

Bmal's,global risk mnqgementprineiples inm 

their local operations. " -Mcyp Koh 

Committed to the responsible 

development and use of natural 

resources. Baral asked Alexander Sten- 

house Limited, A&& broking operaton 

in Australia. to assist in forming an envi- 

ronmental risk management program. 

A&A's loss control consultants helped 

develop an evaluation program empha~ 

s m g  self~assessment and prevention. 

The program's focal polnt- 

consistent global standards for e n w  

ronmental risk information-is now 

an ~ntegral parl of Boral's proactive 

env~ronmental management and 

control activities 

"Global cornpunier must have standan& that ran 

cyoss,ge~paphic and cuhtul bmderr. A e A ,  as a 

,global opera&, helps our clientr put this cmrcept 

On an ongoing bass, risk  man^ 

agement needs far Boral's extensive 

AsiaiPaclfic activities are supponed 

by A&& regional network of 41 

onices throughout Australla, New 

Zealand, Asia and the Pacific 

TO assist in analyzing rlsk financ- 

mg. Anistlcs, through o fces  in 

London, New York. Sydney and 

Toronto, performs loss forecasting 

and other types of strategc r~sk 

management analysis. 

Maggie Koh 

ACCOUO~ Execuhve 

A&A Smgapore 
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Sun Company Philadelphia, Penmylvania Client Sime 1921 

Sun Company has been s u p p r y i q q  to the wwld since 1886. Its 66,000 baml-a-day refirmy in Yiucm, Puerto Rico, one ofsix in 
the U.S. and C a d ,  pmcerresjinqn muicr into lubricunts, jerful anddlesel/iuI. 



Wholesale Broking 

When they began work~ng with 

A&& Balttmore onlce in 1921 Sun 

Company had lust opened thelr flrst 

gasollne stallon to servlce the 

~ncreasmgly popular automob~le 

Today Sun is a malor rel~ner and 

marketer in North Amerlca, as well 

asa leading US. coal producer Sun 

isalso involved internat~onally in 

energy exploration and production 

Its products are sold to a broad base 

of customers, including nearly 6,000 

Sunoco and Atlantc service stations. 

"Alexander Howden is a kqnlobal yesuurcefm 

Sun. T h e p p ' r  expenise was vim1 durirg the 

difFEult 1991 renewal season. " 

A major part of Sun's insurance 

program is placed at Lloyd's and in 

the London and European company 

markets through Alexander Howden 

Limited (AHL). A W s  specialist 

wholesale broking operation. 

Working with our Baltimore oftice. 

AHL maintains a broad knowledge 

of the company and of energy mar- 

kets. Longstanding professional con- 

lacis proved to be of particular value 

in 1991. 

"Che,  reguhr conmct is essenrial m the i n m  

of uur clients. I have been invohzd in sewiciw Sun 

fm mom than ha[fof my 23pn in insurance. " 

Following several years of major 

petroleum industry losses, undetwri 

ters dramatically increased rates for 

many energy insurers. 

Despite the size and complexity of 

its program. Sun was largely pro- 

tected from the market's masswe 

contraction. The respected expertise 

of AHCs marine and energy profes- 

sionals enabled Sun to weather a dif- 

ficult renewal season. 

E X C E P T I O N A L  REACH I EXEMPLARY S E R V I C E  11 



Japan Imurance Cornpanit3 Clients Since 1930 

In the a#emuth of Tphwn Mi& in sepantber, d a q e  to Japan's K y h u  and Chugoku anarpnduced the hgest ri@e chim 
paid in the c m q .  AIexandrr Hmrdcn Rt-innrmm Bmbm Limimi cmmii~ad muny of the mu* chiimr by insumnu companies. 



Reinsurance Broking 

Michael Stephens 

Chief Executwe. Corpoiaie Claims 

Alexander Howden Reinsurance Brokers Limited 

Since 1987, the world Insurance 

industry has been hit every year by 

at least one natural catastrophe 

causng damage in excess of 51 b ~ l  

lion. 1991 was no exception 

InSeptember Typhoon 19, 

known as "Mirelle" swept across 

Japan, causlng losses of more than 

53 billon. 

"We work particularly closely with our Japa~~ese 

clients. Liaicrm and mutual h w t a m  vital quuli- 

trk in these nhtiunships. " -Barry Mukay 

Such a massive losscan obvously 

have a severe mpact on the liquidity 

Of many local insurers. It was impera- 

tive to Settle claims quickly. 

Within hours of the typhoon. Alex- 

ander Howden Reinsurance Brokers 

(AHRB) assembled a London-based 

Catastrophe Claims Management 

Team to coordinate the claims and 

initiate prompt loss recovery 

Japan is an important territory for 

AHRB. As one of Ihe region's largest 

reinsurance brokers, we act for four of 

the top 15 Japanese insurers. For one 

company AHRB has been the pri- 

mary reinsurance broker for more 

than 60 years. 

collection in these exreptiunul cinumrtances. " 

Agalnst a background of increas~ 

ing Itigation, social and poltical 

Pressures, and an unprecedented 

wave of complex clalms floodlng the 

world's reinsurance markets, a vig- 

orous claim?. service is essential to 

meeting our clients' requlrements. 

Japan is but one example of our 

reach. Over AHRB's 150-year hls~ 

tory, we have developed trading 

ltnks throughout Europe, Asid 

Pacific, and North and South Amer~ 

ica, with established servicing capa~ 

bilities in virtually every country in 

the world. 

Barry Mackay 

ChelExecutive. Noo-Manoe 

Alexander Howden Remurance Brokers L,mlted 



W R  Grace Client Since 1958 

W R  Gmcc C? Co. ira $6 billion rpccialty chnnidcand heaM can complny opmrtiw in 45 counnicr. The Alwuude* Canrltiw 
Crmrp help multinational cmpnicr such ar Gnue with the drriqn and implnncnmtia of~bbal ~ t s p o l i c i e s .  



Alexander Consulting Group 

David Degann 

Managing Dmctor Senlor Cansultmg Actuary 

Alexander Coosuitmg Group 

For W R. Grace 8 Co.. with its 50,000 

employees in 45 countries, manag- 

ing postretirement plans requires 

ongoing monitoring of local labor 

laws, tax regulations and competitive 

mdustry practices. 

Offerences in language, culture 

and economlc systems also must be 

considered. 

'Tmpkyee be@pmgrams are a s&rJ%ant cor- 

pmate expendinrre. We help clienh~et maximum 

renrlhfinm their investment. " -MichapI Feehan 

For more than 30 years, this For- 

tune 100 multinat~onal has relied on 

the Alexander Consulting Group 

(ACG), A&& human resource man- 

agement consulting company. 

For example, a complex Financial 

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 

rule required many companies to 

change reporting proceduresfor 

non-US. pension plans. 

Grace's pension plans in Australia. 

Germany, Japan. the Netherlands, 

New Zealand. Switzerland and the 

U.K. were immediately affected. 

With actuarial consultants based in 

each of these countries. ACG eHec- 

tively applied the new ruling to local 

Grace operations. in a way con- 

sistent wlth the financial objectives of 

the global  organization^ 

"We are when our clients are-that's why 

For more than 20.000 clients, ACG 

practitioners offer local, regional and 

international suppon. Its90 offices, 

operating in 18 countries, provide 

expenise in organizational and 

human resource dynamics, employee 

benefits and compensation systems, 

and human resource information 

svstems. 

Michael Feehan 

Senior Actuary 

Alexander Consulting Group 
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Selected Financial Data 

Summary o f  Operat ions  
Opcnt lng rcvcnucs 
Operdting income 
Income ( k ~ )  tiom continuing operations 
I.IXS tiom di\continued operations 
C u r n u l x i ~ c  cttict ofchange in accounting 
Ert rmrdinxy credits 
Net in iomr (Ic,ss) 
I'cr shxe  o f  i cmrnon  stock: 

Incornc (loss) from continuing operations 
Irns f i r m  dlr~.ontinucd operations 
C:r~mi~l.ltive cffcct ofchange in accounting 
E~tr.iordm.ln credits 

Kcr i n c m ~ c  (loss) 

Cash dividcrids 

!trcighrcd .I\.cr.igc number of shares 

Financial Position 
Currcnt asscts 
Working rapitd 
r ~ t d l  dSFCIS 

Ism$-tcm dchr 
Srockh<,ldcrs' q u i t r  



Management's Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations 

General 
Intcn\c price competitinn arnnng North Amcrican prop- 
rrry .~nd  casualty insurers and worldvide rec rss inn~y  
conditions have sc\.crely impacted the Conipany's tindn- 
cid rcsults in rcccnt ycarr. Fnr rhc fifth ronsccuri\.c ycx, 
premium ratcs declined in North Amcrica. Although 
ratcs on ccrtain lines of covcrqcs sr~hilizrd nr incrcascd 
slightly in 1991, rhr n\.crall i m p c t  of premium chmgcs 
c,n the Company'\ rc\.cnucs was ncgatiw. In addition. 
the weak cconorny, particularly in the U.S.,  has led tn  
Imvcr insurcd \.alucs. lo\vrr intrrcst ratcs .md significantly 
rcduccd demand tix c~nsultingscn.ices. Dcspirr thcsc 
conditions. rhr Company achieved modest rrvcnoc 

b ~ o w t h  in 1991 due t o  nct new husincss production and 
ncw product dcvclopmcnr. 

Insurance industy nhscrvcrs and analysts .,re still 
unahle t o  prcdict a changc in rhc market cyclc with any 
hignificanr dcgrcr nf accuracy. However. it is currently 
anticipated that the markcr conditinns which influencr 
rhc Company's rc\.cnuc p o n t h ,  including premium and 
interest mtcs, will rcmain dcprcsscd in 1992. 

In  Januan  1992. thc Cnmpany announced a rcstmc- 
turing plan based o n  a global husincss scgmcntation 
srratcm. That  strategy s h ~ ~ u l d  unable the Company ro 

cnhancc clicnt service as wrll as t i~ tu rc  protitability hy 
hcrtrr aligning its resources with thc servicing rcquirr- 
mcnts of its custnmrm. In the U.S., for rramplc. our  
retail insurance hroking operations arc being organized 
inm thrcc segments: the Glohal Nctwork Segment, rhc 
Cnrporatc Spocialry Segment and thc Small Comrnrrcial 
Business Scgmrnt. This scgmcntation e t h t  should help 
t o  rcducc thc Company's cnsr ofdclivcring quality scr- 

\ icr m its customers The  spccial charge rcaxdcd in thc 
h u r r h  quarrrr nf1991 of $75.6 million includes the 
$45.5 million ofcosts relating t o  this restructuring plan. 

Thc  restructuring is crprctcd t o  produce cost savings 
ofapproximately SIX million in 1992 and shnuld p m -  
tion thc Company to bcnrfit k n m  any f i~rure  imprnvc- 
rncnts in property and casualty insumncc pricing. 

In addition t o  the spccial charge. the Company also 
announced plans tn  sell two  non-core husincsscs in carly 
1992, includingccrtain non-hn,kingopcrations in the 
Nuthcrlands and a L! S-hawxi adminisrratnr of workers' 
cnrnpcnsation funds, fix cstimatcd prncecds of apprnai- 
matcly SSX million. These tmnsacrinns were c~nsuniatcd 
in Fchruan 1992. 

l 'hc  hllmving discuscion and analysis of *igniticant t i c -  

tors .~ticcring thc Company's financial amdirion .uid 
rcsults d o p e n t i o n s  should hc read in conjunction u i r h  
thc xcnmpanying financial sracrnanrs 2nd rcl.ltcd notcs. 

Results o f  Operations 
(@wnti?{q h w ~ ~ t t x  

Consolidated npcrxing rcvcnucs incrcascd 2 . 3  pcrccnr t o  
$1,369.4 million in 1991 cornlured to 2 7.2 pcrccnt 
increase in 1990. Average h c i g n  c w h a n g  rates did nr)t 

significantly hcwccn 1991 and 1990 and, accord- 
ingly. such \.arianccs had minirnd impact o n  rhc camp 
rahility of 1991 \ u s u s  I990 rcvcnucs. Foreign cxch~ngc 
\.arimrcs arc a more significant factor in the compx.- 
hiliry of 1990 versus 1989 rcsults duc t o  the weakening 
rrf the U.S. dollar \.crsus most cumrcncics in 1990. 
Excluding thc ctkcts of fimign e \ c h ~ n g c  rrarcs. c o n s d -  
datrd rcvcnucs increased 2 . 5  pcrccnr in 1991 .~nd 4.7 
pcrccnt in 1990. 

(i,mmissions and fees incrcascd hy 3 .3  pcrccnt in 
1991 compared t o  a 6 .8  percent incrrase in 1990. After 
excluding rhc v.~rianccs in tireign cxchmgc ratcs. rotal 
cnmn~issions and fees incrcascd 3 . 4  percent and 4.6 pcr- 
ccm in 1 991 and 1990. respecti\.cly. 

W<,rlduide rctdil insurance hroking and nsk nian.lgc- 
mcnt revcnucs, which represent approximately ru.0 
thirds of total commissions and fees, incrcascd 1.6 pcr- 
crnt in 1991 compared t o a  0.9 percent increasc in 1990. 
In bnth ycars, net net\ hus~ncss production n . ~  o f i c t  h! 
declining prcmium ratcs, particularly in the U.S. R~sk 
management revcnucs grcrc\v significantly in 1991 due pn- 
marily t o  selected n t c  increases and significant new husi- 
ness gcnuat'cd by thc claims administration opcrati<m in 
the U.S. 

Wholesale broking rcvcnucs incrcnscd by 10.1 perccnt 
in 1991 and 9 .5  perccnt in 1990 primarily due n> strong 
new business pmduction. In 1991, significant rcvcnuc 
gains were made in rcspcct o f  packagcd hrilitics for spc- 
cific risks in the North American non-marine segment 
whereas 1990's growth was cnnccntratcd in the c n c r F  
diwsion 

Wnrlriwide rrinsumncc hroking commissions increased 
8 . 9  pcrccnt in 1991 and 22.9 pcrccnt in 1990 as prc- 
mium rare incrcascs nn srlcctcd lines of hoslncss and nc\\. 
husincss production in the intcrnatinnal operatinns w r c  



partially o t k r  hy  \<,st husincss .ind lower rcncu.~ l  prc- 

~ n i u n i s  in the L1.S o p e r x i o m  A suhsr.~nri.il po r t i on  <,f 
r l ic  i nc rc .1~~  i n  I 9 9 0  r c w l t c d  h m  rcinst.1tcmcnr prc- 

miurns ch .qcd h y  rclnsur.lnrc ccmp.unics ti,llo\ving p ~ y -  

men1 of cb ims  t,n u r ~ s r r o p h i c  ctxcragcs. 

Wnrldwidc rrvcnuc\ of rhc A l c x ~ n d c r  C o n s u l r ~ n g  

t i n q  i n r r c ~ s c d  h !5 .S pcrrcnr and 15.2 p r r i c n t  in 

I'BI and 1990, rcrpoct i \~cl \~.  1-hr dcm.~nd ti,r consul t ing 

~ n i c c s  in thc  arms of c m p l c y x  hcnctith. compc ina twn  

rnd  ~nccnt i \ .c prngr,ir.lms .uid c o m r n u n i c ~ r i o n  consulring 

cnn t i n im  r o  hc dnven hv t hc  nccds ~ ~ f c r n p l ~ w c r s  rlr 

mJn.lgc thc  seep risc in l h c ~ l t h  cut e\pcnses .I\ n c l l  

ncu awntmt ing nnd Icgislarivc ch.~ngcs. k ~ e n u c  gnwtli 
s.ascmstraincd in 1991 h y  the r c c c s s i o n ~ y  prcssorc% 

.~H>cting many client* with m c h  condi t ions cupzx.ctcd I<> 

continue in 1992. 

In \ .cwncnt  income c ~ m e d  on t i duc iay  i h d s  ~ l c i l i n c d  

10.7 pcrcenr i n  1991 AS highrr invcs tmrnt  ic\.cls. p x t i c u ~  

I M \  in thc Cnmpany's U n i t c d  K ingdom opcrarionr. 

wcrc more th.m nfTsct h y  rhc significant dccline in \v<xld- 

\ r d r  h , n - t c n n  inrcrcst ratcs. In\,cstmcnr incoolc 

increased h y  12.7 pzrcctit in 1990 due to highcr S ~ W T -  
term intcrcsr rates and inrcstrnent kvc ls  f r om rhc in r r r -  

n l t lot ia l  i,pcratinns off\cr, in p.m, b y  I h c r  in ruc%r r.ltcs 

in rhc L1.S. 

O~~~tiran,y t'sp.nrrz 
O p c r ~ t ~ n g c \ p c n \ c s  incrc.wA h!. 6.5 percent and 5.9 pcr- 

ccnr i n  1991 2nd 1990. r c s p c c r i d ~ .  Esc lud ingrhc  

i r n p c t  of.fi,rcign c x c h m p  \.rrimccs. c n n w l ~ d ~ r c d  cqrcr- 

aring c~pcnscsiincrcascd h y  6.2 pcrccnt in 1991 and 3 .1  

prrccnt in 1990. 

S.1larir.s .und r c l ~ r c d  hcnctir costs incrr.iscd hy 6 . 7  per- 

cent and 7.6 pcrcent in 1991 .id 1990. rcsprcr~\.cly. In 

1991, 1990 2nd 1989, rhc ( i m p a n y  rccognizcd g i n \  nf 

S5. 1 mi l lam.  S I 3 . 2  m i l l i on  &nJ S15.7 r n i l l a x ~ ,  rrspcc- 

r i \~. lv.  f iom t l l c  s e t t l c n i ~ n t  o f ~ > c n s i n ~ i  ohligatioris to CCT- 

rain rct i rcd cmployccs in G a n ~ d ~ ,  the Un i r c i i  Ktngd:dcm~ 

. ~ n d  rhc U n i t c d  States. Exc lud i t~g  thew pcnsion gains and 
the impact of tbrcign c \ c l i ~ n g c  ratcs, s ~ l x i c s  and hcnctits 

~ticrcazcd h y  5.8 pcrccnt in 1991 and 4.3 pcrccnt i n  
1990. 'Shesc increase\ .ire ~ r r r i h u t a h l c  t o  normal  s.h? 

progcssions, i l iccnt ivc cornpcnsation and highcr p c m  

\ion costs ofticr, in pan, h\, slightly lower h c ~ d c o u n t  

O thc r  npcrat ing c r p c n s c  incrcarcd h y  6 . 0  porcrnr and 

3 . 4  pcrccnt in 1991 2nd 1990. rcspccri\~ely. Excluding 

rhc  impact of t i x c i p  r x c h a n g  v~r ianccs  and a S7.7 m i l -  

I m n  ~vr i tc-~, f f '~, fccm.~ir~ w s t r m  dcvclopment cmrs in 

1989. or l i c r  npcraringcxpcnscs increased h y  5 . 0  ycrcenl 

i n  1991 and 4.3 pcrccnt i n  1990. 

tapcnsc grnwth  in thr cnmparahlc pcr iodr inclurlcs 

incrc.iscd computer  systems cmsrs d u r  r o  u p p d ~ n g o f  

huhincss intimmtinn sysrrms and h igh r r  occupnncy c<xrs 
duc t o  csc.ll,lring rents. Insurance a M s  also incrc.lrcd in 
1991 and 1990 rctlccting highcr premiums slid sclf- 

msu rwcc  rcscn,cs for the O m p a n y ' s  (rrnfrs$ional 

indemni ty  programs. T h c  Company hc l iwcs its rcscmcs 

fix srlf- insured p r o p m s  arc adcquatc to co\.cr all p a r a -  

tin1 claims; hnwcvcr, the cont inued escalation of lcgal 

costs and indcrnniry awards may impact thr  future costs 

of insunncc covcragcs. 
I n  i>cccmher 1990, thc  Financial Account ing  Sran- 

dards Rodrd (FASB) issued SFAS No. 106. "Employers' 

Accnunt ing  for  Postrctircmcnt Rcncfits O t h c r  Than  Pcn- 

sions," which r n w r  hc  adoptcd h? 1993. T h c  sntmment 

requm-s . l cc ru i  of postrct~rerncnr hrnef i ts during thc  

ycirs an r rnp loy r r  p r m d c \  scniccs as o p p s d  to rhc 

pry-as-yuu-go incthod. A l t hough  thc  ( i m p a n y  has no r  

yet h l l y  dctcrmincd rhc m p c r  ot'implr~ncntinir.iting this 
srudard .  rhc c h a n g  WIII likclv incrcaw the m n u d  

c r p u i x  tbr posrretircmcnt k n c f i r s  h y  approximately 

S2.0 rc, $3.0 mi l l ion  per vcnr l'hc incrcasrd crpcnsc 



includrs amortizing the estimated transition obligation 
over a 20-year period. 

Orhe Incmne and Expnucs 
Investment income earned on operating h n d s  decreased 
by 15.5 percent and 9.9 percent in 1991 and 1990, 
respectively. In 1991, the decrease is primarily due to  
lowcr worldwide interest rates. In 1990, highcr intcrna- 
rional interest rates were more than ottset hy lowcr rates 
in the U.S. 

Interest expense decreased hy $6.4 million in 1991 
duc primarily t o  lower interest rates and debt levcls. In 
1990, interest erpcnse increased by $2.9 million primar- 
ily due t o  higher average deht levels. 

In 1989, other income (expenses) includes a $5.3 mil- 
lion gain o n  the sale o fan  office huildingin the United 
Kingdom 

Incarr Tar1 
Excluding the special charge described ahnve, the under- 
Iyingctiective tax rate was44.6 percent in 1991 which 
compares to 43.8 percent in 1990 and 39.4 percent in 
1989. Thesc rates are generally higher than the U.S. stat- 
utory rate of 34 percent due primarily to  state and local 
taxes. amortization of  goodwill and certain expenses 
which arc not deductihlc hy statute in the jurisdictions in 
which the Company conducts business. In 1989, the 
etiectivc rate was fdvorahly impacted by the sales of real 
estate and businesses. 

As morc hl ly  described in Notc 3 ,  during 1991 the 
Company received the final revenue agent's report from 
thc Internal k v c n u e  Senice (IRS) and a notice oftax 
dcticicncy in the amount of$85 million tin the yean 
1980 t o  1986. Most o f t h r  tax deficiency relates to  the 
disallowance of  items arising out  of the 1982 acquisition 
of  Alexander Howden. The IRS has not yet assesed 
interest on the tar deticicnc). o r  additional tax liabilities 
which would he due in years atier 1986 a. a result o f  the 
assessment. The Company's estimate of such additional 
tax and interest, net o f  the federal tar henefit, is approxi- 
matelv $94 million 

The Company filed its formal protest contesting the 
proposed tax deficiency wirh the Appeals Division of  the 
IRS during 1991. Discussions have commenced with the 
IRS and it is expecrcd that they will continuc through 
the remainder of the year o r  until the contested issues arc 
resolved. Thecompany  has suhstantial arguments to  
sustain its position o n  the proposed adjustments and fur- 
ther helieves its rRerVcs are sufficienr to cover potential 
liabilities which may arise o n  settlcmcnt o f  these issues. 

In Fchruary 1992, the FASR issued SFAS No. 109, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes." which supercedes 
SFAS No. 96.  The company d m  not plan to  adopt the 
provisions of SFAS No. 109 until the first quarter of 
1993 and docs not believe rhat adoption will have a 
material impact o n  rhe Company's financial position o r  
results of operarions. 

Di.Emhnwd @emrronr 
There wcrc no additional provisinns required for the 
Gmpany ' s  discontinued operarions in 1991, 1990 or 
1989. 

During 1989, the Company finalized rcinsurmcc 
agreements providing the Atlanta and Kcrnmucia insur- 
ancc companies with insurance coverage for their resenzes 
as o f  Deccmhcr 31, 1988, and for up to  $50 million of 
additional coverage for potential losses in excess of those 
rcszrves. 

In 1991, Sphere Drakc lost an appeal relating to  nn 

adverse court decision and in Fehruav 1992, the House 
of Lords dcnicd the Company's final appeal. The Com- 
pany has indemnified the purchasers of S p h m  h k e  for 
losses incurred in connection with this litigation. A t r d  
to  determine the amount o f  Sphere Drake's liability in 
connection with this marter is currently scheduled h r  
March 1992; however, the Glmpany has estahlishcd a 

$20.0 million liahiliq for the estimated costs o f  this 
litigation. 

Thc Company believes that thc est~matcd rcinsurancc 
premium adjustment and thc dcfcrred intcrcst income 
o n  the Sphere Drake zero a u p o n  norcs 2s dcscrihcd in 
Notc 10 adcqu~tcly pmvidus for the csrimatcd losscs 
rhroughour thc pcnod of runotior indumnitir~tion; 
howc\,er, there is n o  assunncc rhat further ~dverse dwcl- 
opmcnts may not occur due t o  the variahles inherent in 
thc estimation process. 



Cumulahw t f f c t  Adjusmnt 
and Ocrnumfim~ Crcdir 
Eff~ctivc January 1, 1991, the Company adoptcd rhc 
provisions ofSFAS No.  106 relating t o  dcfcrrcd compcn- 
sation plans. This statement required the Gmipnny t o  
change the pcrind ofaccrud ofdcfcrrrd cornpcnsation 
expense tiom normal retirement age (grnerally ngc 65) ro 
the date thc employee hecomcs eligihlc t o  rccci\.c thr  
hcnctit which is age 55 undcr the G m p a n y ' s  plan. 'The 
cumulativr cWcct o f  this axount ing  changc for  ycars 
prior to 1991, net n f a  rclatcd incomc tax kncf i r  of $1 8 
million, was $2.2 million o r  $0.06 per sharc  Tlic e tkct  
ofapplying this ncw accounting mcthcw.1 was not mrre- 
rial to the results afopcrarinns in 1991 and, ifapplicd 
rcrroactivcly. t o  1990 o r  1989. 

The cxtraordinay crcdit o f $ I .  I million in 1989 rcprc- 
scnts the tax hcncfits of utilizing nct opcrating loss 
carryforwards. 

Liquidity and Capital Rsoulrcs 
Cash tlow from operations was more than suficicnt t o  
fund the operating and capital expenditure rcquircmcnts 
as well as dividend payments in 1991. The increase in 
cash, cash equi\.alents and short-term in\,csrmcnts rcprc- 
xn t s  primarily fiduciay tilnds which arc gcncr~lly not 
availahlc for opcrating nccds of the Company. t ' idr~riay 
f u n d  arc invested primarily in gnvcrnment securities and 
hank time deposits. 

The Company's net capital capcnditurcs for prnpcry 
and cquipment and acquisitions werc $25.8 million in 
1991, adecrease of$ZI 1 million frnm 1990's level. i t  is 
anticipated that capital expenditures in 1992 will appror- 
imatc 1991 amounts. 

Thcrc wcrc no  purchases lnadr of the Compmy's 
m m e n s t o c k i n  1991 or  1990. A total o f 3 7  million 
shnm havc bccn purchased at a cosr of $ 8 0 3  million 
sine thc board of directors authorized the purchase o f  
up re  5.0 million sham in 1988. Any future rcpurchascs 
will bc dcpcndent upnn rhc market pricc o f r h r  Com- 

pany's stock and other considerations. 
Total dcht outstanding at Decemhcr 31. 1991, was 

$176.8 million compared t o  $192.7 million at Dcccrnkr  
31, 1990. 

In micl-1991. the Compan! entered into n n c u  long- 
term re\r,lvingcrcdit a,grrcmrnt with varinus hanks 
which cxpircs in July 1995. The  n e u  dgrecmenr 
increased the Gunpany's crrdir facilin from $100 nitl- 
lion rn $150 million. Supplementing the credit q e c -  

mcnt. the Company has committrd unsecured lines of 
crrdit tording $157.2 million as s u p p r t  fbr pssihlc  
h t u r c  cash nccds. 

At Drccrnbcr 31. 1991. the Company hdd $41 4 mil- 
lion of ammercial  p q x r  outstanding undcr a prngram 
hy which the Company may horn,\\. u p  t o  $150 million. 

Folloa,ing thc announccmcnt of thc 1991 special 
chargc r e h r c d  t o  aho\.c, two rating agencies rc~firmcd 
their dchr ratings on rhc Company and a third rating 
agency reduced its raring by one gradc. As r rcsult. rhc 
Company anticipates that thc cost o f h o r r o v i n y  undcr 
its commercial paper program may bc slightly h~glicr in 
1992. 

In 1991, the Accurnularcd Translation Adjustment 
account, a.hich rcprrscnrs the cumulative cttecr of trans- 
lating h~nctional currencies of thc Company's intcrna- 
tional operations t o  U.S. dollars. negati\,cly impxtcd  
Stockholdcrs' Equity hy $7.0 milliml. Thc decrcasc 
resulted from a modest strcngrlicning nfrhe U.S. dolldr 
during 1991 

Thc Company helievcs that cash tlow from npcrarlons, 
supplcmcnrcd hy the prncreds tinm the sale of asscrs and 
seasonal short-term borrowings. will he sutficiont t o  srt- 
is+ workingcapiral and other rcquiremrnts in 1992. As 
morc ti+ dcscrihed in Notes 3, 10 and 1 I ,  the O m -  
pan! has significant tar and litigartnn expsures  which 
may rrquirc cash rcsourccs. The  Cnmpany helicves it has 
suhstmtial argurncnts and lrgal dctcnses against such 
exposures; however. the rimingand ul t i rn~te  outcome 
cannor hc prcdictcd with ccttaino. In the went  addi- 
tional funds arc required. the Company hrlicvcs it has 
sutticient resources. including credit capaciry, t o  cover 
ptcnt ia l  liabilities which ma? arise on wtrlement of 
these ~SSUCS.  



Report of Management 

Management of the Company is rcsponsihlc for all rhc 
intirmation and rcprrccntations conrainrd in the con- 
solidated financial statements and other sections o f  thc 
annual rcpnrt. Management helieves that the consoli- 
dated financial statements and relarrd informatinn have 
hccn prrparcd in accordance with generally acccptcd 
accounting principles dppropriatc in thc circumsrancrs. 
Thesc financial statements necessarily inclrdc amounts 
that arc hased 011 nianagemcnt's judpmcnt  and hust 
cstinlates 

The  Company maintains a system of internal account- 
ing controls t o  pmvidc reasonable assurance that assets 
arc safeguarded against loss frnm unauthorized use nr dis- 
pnsition and that accounting rccords pnwide a rcliahlc 
hasis for rhc prrpararion of financial statements. The 
internal accounting control systcm is a u p c n t c d  hy an 

internal auditing program, written pl ic ics  and guide- 
lines, including the Company's policy o n  General Rosi- 
ness Ethics, and carctill selection and training nf qualified 
personnel 

Delc~ittc & Tnuche has hcen cngzgcd, with the 
approval o f  the Company's stockholders, as t h r  indcprn- 
dcnr auditors t o  audit thc financial statcmrnts o f t h c  
Companv and t n  express an opinion thcrcon. Thcir 
opinion is hased on procrdurrs helicved by them rn he 
sutficient tn  providr rcasonahlr asurancr  that thr  finan- 
cial statemenn present fairly, in all material respects, thc 
Company's tinancial position. cash flows and results of 
operations. Their r c p m  is sct forth on Pagc 23. 

The Audit Committee of the hoard ofdirectnrs is 
r o m p s e d  of five directors, none o fwhom is an 

crnplnycc nf the Company or  any of i ts  suhsidiaries. It 
arists thc hoard in exercising its f i d u c i a ~  rcsponsihilities 
for oversight of audit and rclarcd matters. including cor- 
p a t e  accounting, rcportingand control practiccs. It is 
respnnsihlc h r  recommending t o  the hoard the indcpcn- 
dent auditors t o  he cmploycd for thc coniing ycx. suh- 
jcct t o  storkholdcr approval. The Audit Committee 
mccts periodically with management. intrrnal auditors 
and the indepcndo~r auditon to rc\.irw internal account- 
ing controls. auditing and financial r c p m i n g  matters. 
Thc indcpcndcnt auditors and thc intcrnnl audi ton have 
unrestricted access t o  the Audit G m m i t t c c .  



Independent Auditors' Report 

To The Stockholders of Alerandrr & Alcrandcr 
Services Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated halance 
shects ofAlexander & Alexander Scnicrs Inc, and Suh- 
sidiaries as of Decemher 31, 1991 and 1990. and the 
relatcd consolidated statements of operations, cash f l n w s  
and stockholdrrs' equity for each of the three years in thr  
period ended Deccrnher 31, 1991. Theso tinancial state- 
ments arc the responsihility of the Company's manage- 
ment. Our  responsihility is t o  express an opinion nn  
these financial statements based o n  our audits. 

We conducted our  audits in accordance with gcncrally 
accepted auditing standards. Thosc standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to ohtain reasonable 
assurance ahout whether the financial statements are free 
nf material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and dis- 
closures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and sig- 
nificant estimates made h? management, as well deva l -  
uating the overall tinancial statement presentation 

We helieve that our  audits provide a rcasnnahlc hasis h r  
our  opinion. 

In our  opinion, such consolidated financial statements 
present fairly. in all material respects, the financial posi- 
tion of the companies at Dcccmhcr 31. 1991 and 1990, 
and the results of their npcrations and their cash flows for 
each o f  the thrcr years in the period cndcd Dcccmher 31. 
1991, in conformity with generally acccptcd accounting 
principles. 

As discussed in Note 7 t o  thc consolidated financial 
statements, in 1991 the Company changed its method of 
accounting for dcfcrred compensation. 

DELOIlTE & T O U C H E  
Raltimore, Mapland 
February 12.1992 



Consolidated Statements of Operations 

Operating revenues: 
Commissions and fees 
F iduc ia~  investment incomc 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 
Othcr 
Special charges (Notc 2): 

Restructuring 
Other 

Operating income 

Other income (expenses): 
lnvestmcnt incomc 
Interest expense 
Other 
Special charges (Note 2) 

Income (loss) before incomc taxes and minority interest 
Incomc taxes (Notc 3) 

Income (loss) before minority interest 
Minority interest 

Incomc (loss) before cumulative effect of change in 
accounting and extraordinary crcdit 

Cumulative effect of change in accounting (Notc 7) 
Extraordinary credit (Notc 3) 

Net income (loss) 

Per share o f  common stock (Notc I ) :  
Income (lass) hefire cumulative etfcct ofchangc in 

accounting and extraordinar). credit 
Cumulatiw effect of change in accnunring 
Extraordinary credit 

Net incomc (loss) 

Cash dividends 

Weighted average number of shares 



Consolidated Balance Sheets 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short-term investments 
Accounts rcccivahle (nct ofallowancc for doubtful accounts 

of $23.8 in 1991 and 1990) 
Customcr accounts 
Othcr 

Total currcnt assets 

Property and equipment-at cost: 
Land and huildinp (Notc 5) 
Fumiturc and equipment 
1.casehold improvements 

Ixa accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Property and equipment-net 

Other assets: 
Inng-term notes and other reccivablcs (Notes 10 and I I )  
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization of 

s117.5in 1991 andS113.5in 1990) (Notc2) 
Other (Notes 5 , 7  and 10) 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payablc 
Short-term dcht (Notc 4) 
Other pagables and accmrd expcnscs 

Ibtal current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
lnng-term debt (Nntc 5) 
Deferred income taxes (Note 3) 
Other (Nores 7, 10 and 12) 

Total long-term liabilities 

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Notes 3 , 9 , 1 0  and I I )  
Stockholders' equity (Notes 5, 6 and 8): 

Preferred stock, authorized 9 .5  shares $1 par valuc; issued and outstanding. none 
Scries A Junior Pamcipating Preferred stock, authorized 0.5 shares; 

issued and outstanding, none 
Gmmon stock, authorized 60.0 shares $1 par valuc; issued and 

nutstanding 37.4 and 37.0 shares, respectively 
Class A common stock, authorized 13.0 shares $.00001 p r  value; issued and 

nutstanding 2.9 and 3.0 shares, respectively 
Cldss C common stock, authorized 5.5 shares $1 par value; issucd and 

outsranding 0.5 and 0.6 shares, resprctivcly 
Paid-in capital 
Rctaincd uarnings 
Accumularcd tr.inslation adjustments 

Total stockholders' equity 



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Air*ankre-Ak,ankr burr IN- a d  \"h,&nrr 

b t h r  x a n & l k m h r r  11, icn m r l l m )  

Cash provided ( w d )  by: 
Operating activities: 

Incomc (loss) hcforc cumuhrivc eticcr ofchangc in 
accounting and crtrdordinary credit 

Adjusr~nents rn rcamcilc to  net cash provzded hy opcratmg 
xrivitics: 

Dcprcciation and arnortiz.~tion 
Ikferred incnme tares 
Lnsscs (gains) on disposition of suhsidixics and nrhcr 

1SSC'fS 

Gain o n  pcnsinn plan scttlcmrnts 
Special charges. net nf tax 
Othcr 

Changes in dsscts dnd liahilirics, ncr of ctkcts from 
acquisitions and dispasirinns: 

Accounts rcccivahlc 
Othcr asscts 
Accounts piyahlc 
Othcr currcnr liahilirics 
Othcr liahilitics 

Discontinued operatlorn 
Cuniulativc ctiect of changc in accounting 
Extnordinary crcdir 

Nct cash prnvidrd hy operating activirics 

Investing activities: 
Purchases o f p r o p e m  and equipment-nrr 
Purchases of husincsscs (net of cash acquired) 
Procccds tinm sales of subsidiaries and other asscts (net o f  

cash sold) 
Purchases of investments 
Salcslmaturitics o f  in\,estnients 

Nct cash providcd (uscd) hy invcsring acti\itics 

Financing activities: 
Cash d i idends  
Not changc in short-tcrnm dcht 
Additions t o  long-term dcht 
kpayrncnts  o f  long-term dcht 
kpurchasc nf common stock 
Issuance of conunnn stmk 

Ncr cash uscd hy financing acrivirics 

Effect ofexchange rate changes o n  cash and cash equivdents 
Cash a n d  cash equivalents a t  beginning o f  year 

Cash and cash equivalents a t  end of  ycar 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
C ~ s h  paid during thc ycar fix 

Interest 
Incomc taxes 

Non-cash investing a n d  financing activities: 
Common stnck issued br husiness acquisitions and 

crnploycc henefit pldns 



Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 
A ~ ~ 4 " l ' A b n l r r F n l i r r  Ix and \"b,!d~d~d 

Fnrlrrr*nrxmmrUlkrrnbrr 31 im n t h )  

Common stock: 
Ralance, beginning of  year 
Issued tix acquisitions, 0.1,O.l and 0.1 shares, respectivelv 
Conversions ofclass A and Class C shares into common stock, 

0.2.0.1 and 0.1 shares, respectively 
Common stock purchased and retired, 0.2 shares in 1989 
Other, principally stock option transactions 

Ralance, end of sear 

Class A common stock: 
Ilalancc, beginning of  scar 
Cnnversions into common stock, 0 .1,  0.1 shares and nonc, rcspccti\dy 

Ralance, end of  year 

Class C common stock: 
Ralance, hegnning of  year 
Convenions into common stock, 0.1, nonc and 0.1 shares, respectively 

Ralance, end of year 

Paid-in capital: 
Ralance, beginning of year 
Issued for acquisitions 
Conveninns into cnrnmon stock 
Common stock purchased and retired 
Other, principally stock option transactions 

Ralance, end of  sear 

Retained earnings: 
Ralancc, heginning of year 
Net income (loss) 
1)ividends 

Ralance, end of year 

Accumulated translation adjustments: 
Ralance, beginning of year 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 

Rahncc, cnd ofyear 



Notes to Financial Statements 
irn mdlwm, rricprp7iharranMunrr) 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 
Cbnroluiation 
Thc icc<,mpanyingc<,rlsc,lidatcd fimncial sratcmcnts 
includr rhc accounts of Alcvandcr & Alcrandcr Scn.iccs 
Inc. 2nd its majnri~-owned sohs&ries. All signific.int 
intcrcornpany tmnsacric,ns and h,llanccs h ~ v c  hccn 
cliniinatcd 

F m ( q n  C r , r r r t z ~  Tra,rrhtion 
Assets and li.~hilirics dmomini tcd in tireign currcncics 
arc translated at cxchmsc r a w s  in cticct r t  cach \car end. 
Opcnt ing rcsults arc rranlatcd ar avcr.lp r.ltcs of 

exchange prevailing during tlir ?car L l n ~ ~ l i z c d  g i n  <,r 
Insscs rcsulring from trmslaricm arc includcd 2s a scpx.m 
component ofsrnckhnldcrs' cquiry. 

Forward cxchang contracts arc purcha\cd hy the 
Company t o  hedge the impact of currency tluctuarions 
aticcting the opcrating rcsults of ccmin hreign suhsid- 
iarics. Gains and IOSSCS o n  rhcsc c ~ n t r a c t s  arc gcn~rally 
recognized in thc period in which thc applirahlc 
crchangc rates changc. At Dcccmhcr 31. 1991. the 
Company hdd apprcrximatclv $108.6 million nt-fonvard 
rrchangc contracts nut\t.inding. Thcsc t i n v ~ r d  r r c h a n p  
contracts arc generally purchased from ixgc financial 
insrirurions dlid nlali.1gcmcllr docs not dnriciptc incur- 
ring lnsscs due to nonpchrnxmcc  hy rhasc insritutions. 

Net tixcign currcncy transaction gains. included in 
opcrating income. amounrcd t o  $3.2 million, $8.6 mil- 
lion and none t ix the years cndcd 1)cccmhcr 3 l ,  1 9 1 ,  
1990 and 1989, rcspcctivcly. 

I'mpm?. a d  Dcprc&zrion 
The cost o f  property and cquiprnent is dcprcciated gcn- 
erally o n  rhc stmight-linc mcthod over thc cstimatcd usc- 

fill lives o f t h c  rclatrd asscts which rangc u p  tn  40  ycars 
fnr huilding and I 0  ycars for equipment. 1,caschold 
impro\wncnts arc capitalized and ~ m n n i z ~ d  ovcr rhc 
shoncr of the lifc o f t h c  assct or the lcmc term. 

Inrnyiblr Amtr 
Intangible asscts resulting from xquisirions. principally 
expiration lists and gmxiwill. arc ~mcmizcd  nn thc 
srnight-line mcthod w c r  p c r i d s  nor crcccding 17 and 
40  ycars, rcspccti\.cly. The costs nf nm-cornpctc agree- 
ments arc amortized on  thc stmight-linc mcthmi w c r  

rhc tcrnms of the a p x w n r s .  Amorrizarion nfinrangihlc 
~ s s c t s  incluricri in opcrx ingc lynscs  arncrunrcd t o  
S19.1 million, S t 7 4  million ~ n d  S16.8 mill~on fix thc 
ycars cndcd Dcccmhcr 31, 1YY1. 1990 2nd 1989. 
rcsprrtivrly. 

Incomr T m  
Dcfcrrcd income raxes arc proaidcd o n  rcvenuc and 
crprnsu itcms recognized for financial accounting pur- 
poses in diticrrnt pcriods than h r  incnmc tax p o r p , m .  
Income t a r s  .KC generally nor provided on undistrih- 
utcd carnings offorcign suhsdrancs hcc~usc rhcy x c  

ionsidrrrd t o  he permanently in\.estcd o r  n~ll nor h r  
r c p ~ r r i ~ r c d  unlcrs any .ddirional kdcr.ll inconlc r.lxcs 
w n ~ l d  he suhst.intially otisct hy hrcign tax crcdits. 

Fufm&n Fudr 
Prcmiums which arc ciur tiom insurcds x c  rcponcd 2s 
dsscts of rhc Compdny and as corresponding liahiliticr. 
nct nfcomrnissions, t o  thr  insurance carriers. I'n.mir~rn\ 
recci\ai tinm insureds hut not yet rcrnitrcd t o  thc car- 
riers arc licld as cash or  invcsrments in a tidueinn 
capaciry 

h w u c  Rrrp7nition 

Cnnmrnissions are gcnrrally rccognizcd on the cticcrive 
datc of the policies or  the hilling datc, whichc\.cr is later. 
Any suhscqucnt cornmissinn ~djusrmcnrs. including 
policy cancellation. arc gcncmlly rccognizcd upon noti- 
fication &om the insurance carriers. Contingent commis- 
sions and commissions on policirs hilled and collcctcd 
directly hy insnrancc carricrs arc rccognizrd o.hcn 
rccci\.cd Fcrs fix senices rendered arc gcncnlly recog- 
nized when earned. 

I'w Sbwr Data 
F x n i n y  pcr s h x r  arc hasad on thc wcighrcd a\.cragc 
numhcr ofcnmrnon shares 2nd their econcmir cqui\.n- 
Icnts outstanding during cach pcriorl and, if dilutivc, 
slrxcs issuable undrr stock option plans or dehcntorc 
cnnvcrsion rights. Di\idrnds per shxu  arc hrscd on thc 
Company's common and cronnmic cquivalcnt shares 
outstanding at cach record datc. 



I'nrcnmtion 
Unless o th rwisc  indicated, all amounts are stated in mil- 
lionsof U S  dollars. Certain prior pcriod amounts havc 
k e n  reclassified t o  conform with the current year 
presentation 

2. Special Charges 
In the fourth quarter o f  1991, thc C h i p a n ?  recorded a 

pre-tar chargc o f  $75.6 million ($48.2 million after-tax 
or  $1.18 per share) that includes expenses asswiatrd 
with the rcstnmuring of its insurance hroking operations 
and other costs. 

The rcstmcruring portion of this chargc, amounting t o  
$45.5 million, rrprcsents the anticipated costs ofclosing 
or  consolidating ccrtain hroking otficrs and rcsttuctunng 
othcn.  Severance payments, leasehold write-(1% and 
employec relocation cxpenscs are included in the charge. 
The  cstimatcd costs of selling o r  liquidating a property 
tax consulting operation arc also includcd in the rcsttuc- 
turing provision. 

The  special chargc includcd in opcrating cxpcnscs of 
$1 7.1 million rcprcscnts primarilv thc writr-down of 
goodwill and other intanghlc assets rclated t o  certain 
acquired businrsscs. The $13.0 million includcd in non- 
opcrating expenses represents increases t o  rcsrnus prcvi- 
ously cstahlished for rcpnrtcd contingcncics, primarily 
indcmnitics for ccrtain sold operations. 

In 1990, the C o m p n v  also recorded a pre-tar chargc 
ofS12.0 million ($7.2 million after-tax or SO. 18 per 
share) includinga $6.5 million provision for thc rrstmc- 
turing ofrhc (:ornpany'sglohal operations and $ 5 5  mil- 
lion for certain litigation and contingency matters. 

3. Income Taxes 
The componcnts of income (loss) hefore income taxes 
are as follows: 

FWrhr~nmdairrcnnbo.71, 1991 1990 19x9 -- 
Unircd Sratn S IL" $ 28." 
lntcrnational 101.7 73.6 

- - ~, -- 

$ (3.1) $1023 i $102.4 1 

The components of thc provision for income taxes arc as 

f0ll0\\5 

For,hc.xnnndrdT*mnbn1. 

Currcnr: 
Fcdcral 
Srarc and local 
Intcrnanonal 

The Company files a U.S. federal consolidated tar return 
which includes thc losses o f  its U.S. discontinued opera- 
tions. Thc  currcnt federal provision rrcopizes  the 
amounts payhlc  t o  thc discontinued opcntions for the 
tax hcncfits relating t o  such losscs. 

The  compments  o f  the deferred income tar provision 
are as follo\vs: 

Fa,burrrmdai Drrrmhn.11, 1991 1990 19W - 
lkprcciarion 

- 
6 (3.1) S(1.9)  a 

 ax Icam (5 o ) ~  ( 3 . 1 )  (3.0jl 
Financul accounting accruals. 

ncr 
i 

(8.7): 1.9 9.4 1 
Nct dcferrcd losses on substd- 

iaty dispositions 
Special charges 
Orhcr 



A reconciliation o f t h c  tax pro\. ision and  the amoun t  agrcgatcd approximatcly $274.6 m i l l i on  at i ~ r c e n i h c r  
con iputcd by apply ing the U.S. federal i l icornc tar r x e  31, 1991. These earnings arc considered permanently 
o f34% to income (loss) hc i txe  income taxes is as follo\\.~: invested or w i l l  n o r  be repatriated unless federal income 

Fmnrillr.wanmdrdrXrrm~.zl 

Cmrnporcd "erpcctrd" rax 
cxpcnrc (bcnrlit) 

Starc and l w a l  incomc taxer- 
ncr oifrderal income tax 

h re ign  r taturoy rarer over 
US. icdcral r ratutog raw 

k n e f i t  of incomc rarrd at capi- 
tal gains or orhcr n tc r  

Amonilation of.inranghle 
d*SStS 

Repatriation oifbreign ram- 
inp. nct o f  tax crcdirs 

Other "on-dcducrihle c r y n x r  
Otlier. net 

D u r i n g  1991, t hc  Company  r ccc iwd  the revenucagcnt's 

final rcpor t  h r  t hc  years 1980 to 1986 and notice of tax 

dcficienry fhm the Internal  k \ . e n u c  Scnice (IRS) for 

685 mi l l ion .  T h e  nnt icc o f t a x  deficiency rclates princi- 

pally to the d iu l lowance oTa loss sustained in connect ion 

w i t h  thc  acquisit ion of Alexander H o w d c n  and other  

related issucs also arising out o f t h c  acquisition. 

T h e  IRS  has n o t  a,-scd interest on thc  tax deficiency 

or o rhc r  tax l iahil i t ics wh ich  w o u l d  bc  due in ?can after 

1986 doe  to accclcration in the use o f n c t  operat ing 

losses and  tax credits. T h e  addi t ional  ta r  and  interest, net  

of federal ta r  henefit. on these adjustmcnrs is approxi- 

mately $94 million. T h c  Company  is currently undcr 
examinat ion b y  the IRS  fix the years 1987 to 1989. 

T h e  O m p a n ?  has substantial arguments to sustain its 
posi t ion on thc  unagrecd issues. has t i l r d  a protest n.ith 
the Appeals IXv is ion  o f  thc  IRS. and w i l l  cont inuc  to 

pursue administrative and  judicial relief, as appropriate. 

Management hclic\.cs that  its reserves. inc lud ing the 
$61.1 million tax benefit on thc  loss sustained in connec- 

tion w i t h  the  acquisit ion of Alexander Howden ,  wh ich  

has been deferred, arc sutticicnt to covcr linhilitics wh ich  

may arise on scrt l rmcnr of these issues. 

T h e  ex t raord inan credit of $1 .I mi l l i on  in 1989 repre- 

scnts t hc  tax henefit result ing f rom thc  ut i l izat ion o f n e t  
opr ra t ing  loss carryti,nvards. 

Fedcrd  incomc tares ha\.= nor  h e m  provided on 

und is t r ihu t rd  earnings of foreign subsidiaries u,hich 

rarer \vould he substantially offset h y  foreign tax crcdirs. 

111 F e h m a n  1992, the  Financial Account ing  Standards 
Roard issued SFAS No. 109, "Account ing  tix I ncome 

Taxes." which requires an a s c t  and  liability approach for 
financial account ing and repnrr ing for income taxes and 

p rw ides  for in ip lcmcnrat ion no latcr than the tirst quar- 

rcr of 1993. Th is  statement superccdes SFAS No 96. 

Management hel~cves that w h c n  thc  C n m p m y  adopts 

this new standard in the first quarter of 1993 it \\.ill not 

have a material impact on the financial p s i t i o n  o r  rcsults 

of operations. 

4. Short-Term Lkbt 
Consolidated short-ternm drht consists o f t h e  fol lowing: 

A r r f l h b r r . 3 1 .  I W I  - 
G~rnmcri in l  p p c r  S41.4 
Notcr payahlc ru linnncvd imtiturions 0 .5  I 

(:urrcnt p n i o n  oflong-tcm? dchr 
(Now 5) 6.9 , 

~ 

48.8 
Lrs short-term drhr rtrlssitied a 

long-rrm~ (Notc 5) 41.9 
~~ -~ 

In format ion  w i t h  respect t o  shon-term hornwing 
activity is as fol lows: 



The maximum outstanding balance above rctlects the 
maximum amount of each category outstanding at any 
month end. The maximum aggregate short-term debt 
outstanding at any month end was $1 19.1 million, 
$125.0 million and $95.2 million in 1991, 1990 and 
1989, respectively. 

Including the $150 million credit facility described in 
Note 5(B), the Company has committed unsecured lines 
ofcredit totaling $307.2 million ofwhich $306.5 million 
was unused as of Decembcr 31, 1991. The lines may he 
drawn as needed with interest at market rates and car? 
an annual commitment fee of no  greater than '14% o f  the 
linc. In addition, the Company has appmximatcly $68.2 
million of uncommitted bank lines of credit which are 
available for gcneral corpnnte  purposes, of which $67.0 
million was unused at Dcccmber 31. 1991 

5. Long-Term Debt 
Consolidated long-term debt outstanding is as follows: 

Ar (Darn6n 31, 

1 I% Convertibk suhordinarcd 
dchenturer (A) 

kclauifird short-tcrm dchr (R) 
Long-tcrm cmdit agmcmcnt (R) 
Obligation under capital lrasc (C)  
Non-rrcoursc mortpge notes (Dl 
Senior norcs (E) 
Orhcr 

Lcs current prt ion  (Note 4) 

The principal payments required during the next five 
years, excluding the reclassified short-term dcht, are $6.9 
million in 1992, $6.6 million in 1993, $6.0 million in 
1994, $5.9 million in 1995 and $5.7 million in 1996. 

A .  I I % Cmmemblc SubmdiMtd Dcbmnrm 
The dehenturcs are unsecured suhordinatcd obligations 
maturing April 15, 2007. The  d e k n t u r c s  were issued in 
connection with the acquisition of Alexander Howden 
under an Indenture agreement dated Fehrua? I ,  1982, 
and are convcrtihlc into common stock at $39 per share, 
suhjcct t o  adjustment under certain conditions and to 
prior redemption. Duringrhe fourth quarter o f  1990, 
the Company purchased $0.7 million +ice value o f t h c  
dcbcnturcs at approximate par value. Thc  remaining 
dchenmres are redeemable any time. at the Company's 

option. at 104.40% of par value prior t o  April 15, 1992, 
and at declining prices thereafter until April 15. 1997. 
Commencing April 15, 1992, and annually thereafier. 5% 
of the dgqegatc principal amount outstanding as of Oc tw 
her 15. 1991. must k redeemed at thc principal amount 
through the operation ofa  mandato? sinking fund. 

R. %-Tm Cndrr &mxmn 
In July 1991, the Company entered into a new long- 
term credit agreement with various hanks which crpirrs 
in July 1995. The new agxcmcnt increased the (Am- 
pany's credit facility from $100 million to $150 million. 
The agreement contains various restrictions including 
limits o n  minimum net worth, maximum consolidated 
deht. minimum interest coverage and minimum consoli- 
dated cash flow h-om continuingoperations. As a result 
of the 1991 special charge rcferred t o  in Note 2, the 
Cmmpany was not in technical compliance with crnain 
covenants contained in the credit agrecmcnt; howr\.er. 
waivers were obtained on those covenants through .%p- 
ternher 30, 1992. The Cmnipan? has thr  option ro select 
domestic o r  Eurocurrency harrouings priced at a spread 
ovcr the appropriate indcr. Thc Company has not hor- 
rowed under this agreement. 

In the event short-tcrm bnrrowinp cannot k made 
ad\,antageously, the Company intcnds t o  use this facility 
t o  refinance a portion of its short-tcrm harrnwings o n  a 
long-term haqis. Accordingly. $41.9 million and $49.7 
million of short-term dcht has heen reclassified as long- 
tern1 deht at December 31. 1991 and 1990, respectively. 

In addition, a Canadian subsidiary had a three-year 
credit agreement with a Canadian financial institution 
which evpited in May 1991 

C. O b l ~ ~  U& Capml Luvr 
A French suhsidiay has a lcase agreement for office tacili- 
ties which is classified as a capital lease. Future n~inimum 
Ieasc payment obligations are approximately S2.5 million 
for each of thchcxt five years and an a w e g a t e  ofS33.2 
million thercaficr. 

D. Nm-Rcroum Mmypylr Nom 
Two suhsidiarics o f  the Company haw an inwstmcnt in 
a direct financing lease ofan office building and related 
non-recourse mortgage notes. The  mortgagr notcs hear 
interest at rates k t w e e n  12.1% and 13.0% and art. pay- 
able in semiannual installments of $1.4 million (includ- 
ing principal and interest) through Sepremher 2010. 



The  c o n i p n c n t s  of the net investnicnt in the direct 
tinancing leasr, includcd in Othcr Assets in thc Consoli- 
dated Ralancc Shects as of Dcccmher 31. I991 and 1990. 
arc as follo\m: 

Future mmimum l c . ~  paymcnrs t o  he rccci\.cd arc 

approximately $2.8 million f o r  each o f  the next tiw years 
and an aggegatc of $57.8 million thereafter. 

5. hknior Nokx 
Thc  senior notcs arc duc in Junc 1992. hear interest. 
adjnstcd c\.cv six months, hascd upnn 1.lRORpl~1s '11% 
(5.0% xr Dcccmhcr 31. 1991) and arc suhjcct to\-ahous 
restrictions including limits on minimum conwl id~tcd  
net worth, maximum consolidated indchtcdncss, mini- 
mum intcrcst covcragc and minimum consolidated cash 
flow. As a result of t h r  1991 spccial charge rcfcrred t o  in 
Notc 2, the Cmmpan? was not  in technical conipliancc 
with ccmin covenants contained in thc notc agrccmcnt; 
however, a a i r m  wcre ohtainrd o n  rhow co\.cnants 
through Junc 30, 1992. T h n c  notes have hccn clasiiird 
as long-rcmm dcht as thc Cmmpany intends t o  refinance 
thesc notes o n  a long-term hasis. 

6. Stock Option and Incentive Plans 
In 1988, thr  shareholders appro\.ed the 1988 lnng-Tcrnm 
Inccnti\.e Cmmpcnsarion Plan (1988 Plan) which pro- 
vides for rhc granting o f u p  t o  3 million shares of the 
Company's common stock t o  officers and kc? cmployccs 
as stock options, including incentive stock options and 
non-qualiticd options. stock appreciation rights. 
rwtrictcd stock awards, pctiorrnancc sharclunit awards 
and other stock hawd awards. 

Stock options may he p n t c d  undcr rhr  1988 Plan at a 
price not less than rhc fair rnarkcr r d o c  of thc comnion 
stock on the darr the option is grantcd and, with rcspcct 
t o  inccntivc stock options, must he exercised nor later 
than 10 ?can from darc o f p n t  and, with respect t o  
non-qualitied options, must he cxerriscd nor hrcr r h ~ n  
10 yean and one day from datc ofgrant.  

S r ~ x k  appreciation rights may hc grantrd d o n r  or  in 
conjunction w t h  a stnck optin11 at d pncc not Irrb than 
rhc fair markct value of rhc con7mon stock at datc of 
grant. U p n  cxcrcise o f a  stock rpprcciarmn right, thc 
participant will receive cash. common rrmk or 2 cornhi- 
nation thereofequal t o  the excess o f the  niarkcr val~ic 
over the exercise price o f rhc  stw+ apprcctarion right. 
Excrcisc ofcirhcr rhc right or  rhc m x k  option will result 
in the surrender of rhc orhcr. 

Rcstricrcd stock awards may he gmntcd which l m i r  
thc salt o r  transfcr o f t h c  shares until the espirarlnn o f a  
spccitied rimc pcriod. Such w a r d s  arc suhjcct t o  forfci- 
turc if thc pamcipanr docs not rcmain in thr  cmploy of 
the Company throughout the rcstrictcd rimc period. A 
maximum of 750,OOO s h a m  may he issued undcr the 
1988 Plan. Thcrc wcrc 22,880 and 85,434 s h m  issued 
in 1991 and 1990, rcspccri\dy. 

l'crforniance sharciunir awards may he gnnrcd h.wd 
u p n  ccrrain pcrforrnancc crmcria ar dctcrmincd h> thc 
Compensation and Rcnefits Cornmittcc of thc hoard of 
dircitors. U p n  achicvcmcnr ofrhc pcrforrnmwz share1 
unit cntcria, the participant will recei\.e cash, common 
stock or  a cornhinaion thereofcqoal t o  the award. Thcrc 
were 1,400 pcrformancc sharclunit awards mddc in 
1990. N o  petiormancc sharclunit awards a c r r  madc in 
1991; ho\vcrcr. 21.582 shares were issued t o  participants 
for awards madc in +or years. 

She  Company's Irmg-Tcmm (:ompcnsation Prog~am 
(1982 Prngram), adopted in 1982. was superseded by the 
1988 Plan dcscrihed aho\.c. Thc 1982 I'n,gram consimd 
of rhrcc mdcpcndcnt plans provid~ng kx 5tock option. 
pcrt"rmmcc honus awards and restricted stock dw.lrds. 
No  stock options a.crc grmtcd aticr Dcccniher 31. 1988. 
and no  pcrfnrmance h n u s  or  restricted stcxk la-ards 
wcrc rnadr after May 19, 1988 



Stock option transactions under thcsc programs wcrc 
as follows: 

Outstanding, lanuan. 1 ,  
1989 

Gnnrcd 
Excrciwd 
Gncclcd 

Outstanding. Ikccrnhcr 31. 
1989 

tinntcd 
Excrciad 
Cancclcd 

Oursranding, Ikcemkr 31. 
1990 

Gnntcd 
Excrcivd 
Gnceled 

Buannding, k c c r n k r  3 1. 
1991 

The numhrrofoptions crcrcisahle at Dccmmhcr 31 a c r e  
as follow: 

1991 1,724.060 
1990 1.483.344 
1989 1.254.304 

7. Employees' Rctircmcnt Plans and Benefits 
Prnrwn Phm 
Thc Conipany has contributor?. and n o n - c o n t r i b u r n ~  
defined benefit pension plans co\~cringsuhsnntially 111 
cmploycrs. T h r  plans generally provide pension knc t i t s  
thar are based on  the  cmplovcc's ycars o fc rv icc  and 
compensation prior t o  rctircmcnt. In g c n m l ,  iris thc  
Company's policy t o  fund t h e x  plans consistent with 
laws and regulations of  the  rrspecri\.c iurisd~ctions in 
which thc  G)mpany operates. An ovcrii~nding crists in 
the Unitcd Srata '  largest plan. As a result, thc  Company 
docs not anticipate making any contributions t o  this plm 
until thc  overfunding is substantiall! rcdurcd. 

During 1991. 1990 and 1989 thc Company's Cana- 
dian, Unitrd Kingdom and Unitrd States pension plans. 
rcspectircly, .settled thc  accumulated hcnctit ohligation 
t o  rcrtain retirees by purchasingannuity contracts for 
$25.7 million. $52.1 million and $37.4 million, rcspec- 
tively. Thc resulting prc-tar gains o f  $5. I ,  $13.2 and 
$15.7 million for the  ycan 1991. 1990 and 1989. rcspec- 
tivcls, have hccn recognized as a reduction of  pension 
cxpense and arc included in salaries and hencfits in the 
Cnnwlidatcd Statcmcnts ofOperations. 

Total pension costs (crcdir) for the  years cndcd Dcrem- 
her 31, 1991. 1990 and 1989 are summarized as follows: 

IWI 1990 19x9 --- 
%n.icc a r t  5 27.7 , S 27.7 S 24.8 
I n r ~ ~ t s r  Cosr 33.8 371 29.9 ! 
Acrual rcrurn on plan amn (98.0) (36.0) (101 S), 
Ncr amorriution and 

dcfcml 40.7 j (31.8) 
~ ~ 

48.6 
! 

Ncr ycnsion cmrs 
(crrdit) s 4 . 2  $(3.01i - 



The  following tdhle sets forth thc h n d e d  status and amounts recognized in thr  Company's Consnlidatcd Balance Shccts w 
o f ~ e c e m h e r j l ,  1991 and 1990: 

Vcstcd knefit  ohligation 

Accumulated hcncfir ohligation 

Projected knrtir  ohligation 
Plan s e t s  i t  fsir market value 

Exccx of plan asscts over pmjrcrcd hcnrfit ohligation 
Unrecoz~~izcd ncr   in - 
Unrccognizcd ptior scnicc cost 
Unrecopircd net assets hcingamonmcd over the plans' 

avmgc rrmainingscn.ice lives 

Assumed discount rate 
Assumcd ntc ofcompcnsation incrcase 
txpcctrd n t r  ofrrrurn on plan asscts 

At Dcccmhcr 31,1991 and 1990, approximately 80% 
and 77%, respectively, of all plan asscts arc invcstcd in 
equity sccuritics and 20% and 23%, rcspccti\dy, in a s h  
equivalents andlor fixed income securities. 

Thnft Plans 
The Company maintains rhriti plans tor most U.S. and 
Canadian employees. Undcr the thrift plans. eligihlc 
employees may contribute amounts through payroll 
deduction, supplemented hy Company contrihutions, 
for invrstmcnts in various funds established hy the plans. 
The  cost o f  thcsc plans WAS $1 1.4 million in 1991, S11.2 
million in 1990 and $6.5 million in 1989. 

P o m t i r e m m t  Remjfifs 
Suhsrarltially all of the Company's U.S. employees, aftcr 
reachingagc 55, may become rligihlr fix cerrain post- 
rrtirement health care (up t o  age 65) and life insurance 
benefits. The  costs for thrsc henetits, which are recog- 
nizcd as expenses when premiums o r  claims are paid, 
wure approximately $1 5 million in 1991. 1990 and 
1989, respectively. 

C c m i n  of thc Cornpany's international suhsidixics 
haw similar plans for their employcrs, however, most 
rctircrs are covrred primarily by govcrnmenr sponsored 
programs. As a result, the cost to the Company firr 
retired employees is not  signiticant for these programs. 

In  Deccmher 1990, the FASB issurd SFAS No. 106. 
"Employcn' Accounting for Postrrtircment Benefits 
Other  Than Pensions," which will require accrual of 
postrctiremcnt henefits during the years an rmplnycc 
provides seniccs. The impact of this ncn. standard has 
not heen fully determined; howrvcr, thr  change will 
likcly result in an increase t o  the annual expense of 
approximately $2.0 t o  $3.0 million. 

The  Company plans t o  adopt this statement in 1993. 
Whcn adopted, the transition ohligation rclaring t o  prior 
rmployrr sen.icc will he recognized ovcr 20 years. 

Dzfind Comprnsaciun Plan 
The Company has a dcfcrrcd compensation plan which 
permitted certain of its key officers and employers t o  
defer a portion of their incentive compensation during 
1986 t o  1989. The Company has purchasrd whalc lifc 
insurance policics on each participant's life to assist in the 
h n d i n g  of the deferred compensation liability At 
Decemher 31, 1991. thr  cash surrcndcr value of these 
policics was $15.0 mlllion, w h ~ h  is net of $10.8 mill~on 
of policy loans. The Company's obligation under the 
plan, including accumulated interest, was $20.7 million 
and $14.4 million at Decemher 31, 1991 and 1990. 



rcsprctively, and is included in Other  Irmg-Ternm 1.ia- 
hiliries in the Consolidated Ralancr Shccts. 

Prior to J a n u q  I ,  1991, the drfcrrcd compensation 
expcnsc was hring accn~rd  on .I prescnr wluc hasis m c r  

the pcrind ofactivc cmplnymcnt t o  normal retlremcnt at 
age 65.  Etfcctivr J m u a y  1 ,  1991. thc ( impany adoptcd 
the provisions ofSFAS No.  106, "Employers' Accounr- 
ing for Posrrctiremenr Rrnrfirs Orhcr Than Pensions." 
rclaring t o  drfcrrcd compcnsarion plans. This srxcmrnt  
required thc accrual ofdcfcrrcd compensation chpcnse 
ovcr the period of acti\.r cmployrncnr t o  the tidl eli@- 
biliry datc, which is generally age 55 under the Com- 
pany's plan. 

The c o m u l x ~ \ ~ r  cfticr of this accounring c h a n g  for 
years prior to 1W1 was an increase t o  the net loss in 
1991 ofS2.2 million. ncr ofrclarcd income tax hcnciit nt 

$1.8 million, or  $0.06 pcr sliarc. 
The cticct ofapplymg this new accounting mctliod 

was not matcrial t o  rhc rcsults ofoperations in 1991, 
and, ifapplied rctroacti\dy, t o  1990 o r  1989. . 

8. Common and Prcfcrrcd Stock 
C~mmon St&-k 
In addirion t o  irs common stock. rhc (:nrnpany has 
issucd nvo classes ofvormgcquiry \ccuririrs, (:lass A 2nd 
Class C common srock, wirh wr ing  rights equal t o  the 
Company's common s r ~ k  Arcoci~rcd wit11 nc11 such 
sharc is a dividcnd p~ying  sliarc isucd hy a Canadi.111 
(RSC Class 1 share) or a U n m d  Kingdom (AAE Divi- 
dend shxc) s u h s i d i a ~  which pays dividmds in C.lnndim 
dollars and pound\ srcrling. rcspccrively. equivalent t o  
thc di\.idcnds p a d  on sharm o f a m m o n  srock. H o l d r r ~  
of thcsc sccurirics, thcrcfixc. hold rhc rconomic cquiva- 
lcnt ofsharcs ofcomrnon stock. F ~ c h  Class A sharc 
(togcthcr with m RX: Class 1 sharc) and C l a s  <: sh.xe 
(togcrhcr tvith an AAE I X d c n d  share) may he 
cxchangrd .u any rime for a sh.irc ofcommon stock. 

At Dcccmhcr 31, 1991. the Cimpany had 3.9 million 
shares of common stock rcscnmi fix issuance undcr 
cmploycr stock nprion plans, 0 .1  million shxcs rcscncd 

fix contingent issuanrc undcr husincss purcliasc .iycc- 
mcnts. 1 .7  million s h ~ r c s  rcsened h r  issu,incc in the 
event ofconvcrsion of rhc 11% convemihlc suhordinnted 
dchcnrures and 3 . 4  milliori sharcs rcscncd h r  issuance 

upon redemption or  c o n v A o n  ofrhc <:la\ A dnd CI.iss 
C common sharcs. 

DmArd Rrst?+tzbnr 
Nodividcnds may hc dccl.md o r  prid on the Company's 
common stock unlcss an cquiv~lcnr imount  per sharc IS 

declared and paid on the economic cquivalcnt sharer. 
Accordingly, t h r  Company's ahiliry t o  pay dividcnds is 
limitcd hy thc amounrs aailahle t o  thc Canadim and 
U.K.  subsidiaries for such purposes. Thesc amounts 
apprmirnate Canadian SM.5 million or  $40.2 million. 
assuming ce r t in  solvcncy rests irc mcr undcr ( :~n.xi i~n 
law, and 131.7 million pounds stcrling or $246.5 mil- 
lion, rcspcctivcly. at Dcccmhcr 31, 1991. In rhr rvcnr 
sufficient carninp arc not amilahlc in Clnada or  the 
United Kingdom ro drclarc d i d r n d s ,  t h r  Company? 
Icgd stnlcturc allows it t o  m ~ k c  carninp o r  capital d\.ail- 
ahlc in t h o x  counrrics to pay dividcnds. 

Prrfnrrd Smk and Rrlak-d &/m 
The Cimpany's prcfcrrrd stWk can hc issucd in one o r  

more scries \r.irh tidl o r  limitcd voting fights. with rlic 
rights o f c ~ c h  scrim t o  he dcrern~incd hy rlic hoard of 
directors hcfirc each issuance. 

In 1987, rhc k n r d  ofdirecnrs  authonrcd a ?cries of 
prcfcrrcd s t ~ k .  Series A Junior Parricipating I'rcfcrrcd 
Srock (Prcfcrrcd Shxrs) .  SI 0 0  par \.aloe pcr sh.xc 2nd 
dcclxcd a di\.idcnd of one preferred sliarc purchzre right 
(1 Righr) for each outsranding sharc ofcomrnon SIC&. 

rach common stmk cqui\~alcnr and cach suhscqucnrly 
issucd share. F k h  Rght ,  as arncndcd. cntitlcs the lholdcr 
rhcrcofto huy one onc-hundredth ofa  I'rcfcrrcd Sharr 21 

a prier of $85 (suhicct t o  xiiusrmcnrs). Thc Rights 
hrcomc ciercisahlc only if a pcrsnn or  a group acquires 
hcncticial ownership of 10% or  morc of rht  ( i m p m y ' s  
voting sharcs or  announces 3 rcndcr or C X C ~ - I I I ~ C  offer  ti^ 
10% o r  more ofsoch \.oting sharcs. If thc Rights I ~ c t r m c  
cxcrcisahle, each holder will hc cntitlcd t o  purchxc rr 
the thcn-currcnt cxrrciu- pricc that n u n ~ h c r  of Prcti.rrcd 
Shnrcs Ihning J. \.slue cqud to twice the then-current 
crcrcisc pricc If rhc Cmmpany is suhscqucnrly ncquircci. 
cx l l  Rghr  will cntitlc rhc holder t o  purcliasc at rhc thcn- 
current crcrcisc price. stock o f t h c  suni\.ing company 
h.iving a rnarkcr \,aluc of nvice thc cxcrcisc pnic  o f c . ~ h  
Right. In add~tion,  ifa pcrson o r  group acquircs morc 
than 10% pcrccnr. hut lcss than SIB6  pcrccnr, of rhc 
Compmy's wr ing  shares. the hoard of directors may 
crchmge each Right t i ~ r  one nnc-hundredth ofa  I'rc- 
fcrrcd Sharr. Thc Right* arc rcdccmahlc hy the hoard 
until rlic time ail\- pcrson or group lhs  hcn~fi~i.dly 
acquired 10% pcrccnt or  mure of the Company's voting 
slurcs. All rights hcncficdly owned hy ,I holder of10% 
percent of morc of rhc \otingshnre\ hccomc void once 
such lholdrr passes the 10% pcrccnt tliresliold. Thc 
Rglits are r~decmahlc hy ~ C I I O ~  of IIIC hoxd of d i r ~ ~ r o r s  



prior t o  hecomingcxcrciuhlc at a rcdcrnprior pricc of 
S.01 pcr k g h t .  The h g h t s  will expire o n  July 6. 1997. 

Tnuiu~ S t a b  
Thc  hoard ofdirectors has authorized. suhjcct t o  ccrtain 
husincss and market conditions. the purchase of u p  t o  5 
million shares o f  thc Cmmpany's common stock. As of 
Dcccmhcr 31. 1991. thc total nunihcr ofsharcs pur- 
chased was 3.7 million at an a\.cragc pricc o f  $21.77 per 
sharr. N o  shares wcrc rcpurchascd in 1991 o r  1990. 

9. Commitments 

I m  Cimmirnunn 
The  Company lcascs property and equipment undcr 
noncancclahlc operating lease agccrncnts which crpirc at 
\.arious dates through 2014. 

h t u r c  minimum annual rentals undcr noncancclahlc 
operating lcascs, a.hich ha\.c hccn rnnslatrd i t  l>rccmhcr 
31. 1991 closing forcign rnrhmge mtrs. arc as tirllows: 

Thcrcnhcr 300.3 
- ~. 

Total mintmum Ira.% paymcors MU39 

Rent cxpensc for otficc spacc. which includes p r o p e m  
taxes and certain other costs, amounted t o  $96.5 mil- 
lion. $96.9 million and $91 3 million h r  thc yrars ended 
Deccmhcr 31, 1991, 1990 and 1989, respecrivcly. 

Orhcr (hzmnnrirmcntr 

Thc  Company has p a n n t c c d  ccrtain horrowinp and 
letters ofcrcdit and has o t h c v i s e  agrred t o  rcirnhursc 
the payment of certain nthcr asertcd o r  unasscrtcd 
liahilitics of suhsidiarics. Whilr rhcse .Issunncrs and 
guarantees may expose the Company t o  financial consr- 
qucnccs, it is managcmcnt's opinion that any ad\,crse 
cticcts a.ill not h r  material t o  rhc Company's financial 
conditicrn 

T h r  Company has rntrrrd into mct-hascd interrst 
ratc swap agrrcmcnts with largc financial institutions t o  
hcdgc a p n i w i  o f i u  invesrmcnt p r r h l i o  against short- 
term intcrrst rate tluctuathms. Any diticrcnccs in inrcrcsr 
income hctwccn the fixcd and tloaring mtcrcsr ratcs arc 
rccordcd monthly. Ar Dcccmhcr 31, 1991. the principal 
amounts of swap agcerncnts outstanding wcrc 
$130.6 million. The Company is crposcd t o  crcdir lc~sscs 
on only the interest clcmcnt in thc c\.cnt of nonpctibr- 

mnnce hy rhese finmci.d in\tirutinns. ho\vc\.cr. m.lnagc- 
mcnt docs not anticipate incurring losses due rn such 
nonpcdbrmancc. 

10. Discontinued Operations 

In March 198.5, the Company disconrinucd the insur- 
ance underwriting suhsidiarics acquired in 1982 as pan of 
the Aleunder Howdcn acquisition. In 1987. rhc Com- 
pany sold Sphrrc Drake Insurance Group (Sphcrc ikakr)  
and is currently running-off the Atlanta and Rcrniuda 
msurmcc companies. Thc prorision fbr loss, w h ~ h  was 
cstahlishcd as a rcsulr of discont~nuing thcsc opentions. 
has not rcquirrd adjustment during thc throc-year pcriod 
cndcd Dcccmhcr 31, 1991 

Thc Sphcrc Drakc ulcs agrccnicnt provides indcmni- 
tics h o m  the Company tix \ x i n u s  p m n t i a l  liabilities. I n  
connection with ccrtair of thcsc indcmnitics. the <:on>- 
pmy porch~scd from thv huycr 25.7 million pounds 
rrcrling rcrn cnupon notcs wirh inrcrcrr rxcs from 10% 
t o  12% duc in 1995. Thcsc long-term notes rccctvahlc 
arc included in thr  Consolidated Ralancc Shrcts at a dis- 
counted value of I 9 3  million pounds srrrltng ($36.1 
million and $37.2 million at Deccmher 31, 1991 2nd 
1990. rcspccrivcly). Thc rcpaymmr ofrhcsc notcs hy the 
huycr is suhjcct ro oKkr hased upon rhc adcquacy o f  rhr 
1 oss . rcscncs . and reinsurance rrcorerahlcs rccordcd on 
the twmks of Sphcrc 
D n k c  at Dcccrnhcr 31. 1986. The rccnpition o f t h c  
inrcrcst incnmc o n  rhc zcro coupon notcs will he 
dcfcrrrd until the issucs and indemnifications rclatcd t o  
thc discontinncd opcntions have hccn rcuh.ed. 

Thcrc has hccn some dcrcrioratinn in loss rcscnrs 2nd 
uncollccrihlr rcinsunncc halanccs, along with an ad\.crsc 
coun  dccisirrn issucd against Sphcrc D n k c  in thc L'nircd 
Kingdom d a t i n g  t o  an indemnified legal conringmcy. A 
trial datc t o  detcrminc rhc arnonnr ofdamages is schcd- 
ulcd for 1992; hou.cvrr, rhe < i m p a n y  cstahlishcd a $20 
million liahiliry in 1991 with respect t o  this issue. 

In 1984. Spherc D n k c  filed a lawsuit against thc 
Names on I.lo?d's Syndicate 701 sccking payment of 
t i~nds  d u r  Sphcrc D n k c  pursuant t o  a stop-loss rcin- 
sunncc conrract with Syndicatc 701 and a dctcrrninxicr 
of continuing stop-loss coverage prntccting Sphcrc l ) r ~ k c  
ondcr that contract. The Chmpany has indcmnificd the 
purchasers of Sphcrc D n k c  in conncction with this l i t i p  
tion. A trial was held in larc 1991 a ~ d  thc Company is 
aa,airing thc iudgc's decision. Management hclic\,cs rhar 
Sphcrc Dnkc  has a strong posirion in this casc. H n a -  
crcr. rny losscs incurred in connccrion wirh r h ~ s  martcr 
should he substantially oRsct hy the rcscne dcscrihcd in 
Notc 12. 



During 1989, the  Company finalized rcinsurancc 

agreements prov id ing the At lanta and Rcrmuda insur- 

ance companies w i t h  insurancc covcragr fix thc i r  rcscnrcs 

as of Dcccmhcr 31, 1988, and for u p  to $50 mi l l i on  of 
insurance coveragr h r  potent ia l  losses in excess of thmse 

reserves. T h e  agreements also provide for a rcinsurancc 

p rcm ium adjustment whcrchy at any t ime  after January 

I, 2001, the  reinsurance agrccmcnrs can b e  terminated 

and any excrss timds. ne t  of any reinsurance p rcm ium 

paid t o  a suhstitutc rcinsuranrc company, nw~ ld  hc 
r r t u rncd  to the Cnmpany. 

T h e  G m p a n y  hclicves that. hascd on currcnr loss pn,- 

jcctions, the estimated rcinsurancc p rcm ium adjusrmcnr 

described a h o w  and thc  intcrcst incomc on thu Sphcro 

Drake zero coupon notes w i l l  he substantially in caccss nf 
t l ic  currently d r f r r red  costs ofapprnximarcly $10.2 mi l -  

l ion  relating to the discont inucd opcrations, any h t u r c  

indemnifications and  o K ~ o t s  related t o  t hc  Sphere D n k c  

agrccmcnt, the  tu turc  r u n - n f  cxpcnscs net n f a n y  invest- 
mcnt incomc of the At lanta and Rcrniuda opcmtions, 

and any othcr expenscs associated w i t h  i ts discnnt inucd 

opcrations. Thcrc  is, ho\i,c\,er, nn assurance that h r t h c r  
advcrsc dcvr lopments may not occur due t o  vanahlcs 

inhcrcnt in the cstiniation process, i n c l u d ~ n g  estimating 

insurancc rcscncs, thr rcco\wahi l i ty  of rcinsuranrc hal- 

anccs and ccrtain l i t igat ion matters. 

A summary o f  the net assets (liabilities) n f t h c  Corn- 

pmy'sdiscont inucd operations a of Dcccnihcr 31. 1991 
and 1991) is as fol lows: 

Asst.; 
G s h  and inwstmcnrr 
Orhcr rsscrs 
k fc r red costs (rcscncs) 

Liahilnics 
Claim lirhiliricb 
Othcr 

Net isscts (liahilitics) ofdisconrinurd 
opmtlons 

During 1991 and  1990, t h c h m p a n y  rcni i t ted 

approximately $1.7 million and $2.8 mill ion. rcspec- 

tively, t o  its discontinued operations representing ta r  

bcncfits from pr io r  years' losses and  fund ing of claim and 
cxpcnsc liabilities. 

An analysis of the Company's ne t  deferred costs 

(rcscn,cs) of i ts discontinued operations is a f i~l lo\vs:  

15-31 1 W0 -- 
Rahncc, hcginningofyar S(18.2) $(20. 1)l 

Nct losr (mcomc) of I 
cornpanics k i n g  m n o f  2.2 I 1.5 ! 

lawsuit indrmnin  
I 

p rm iwn  20.0 8 - 
U K  t a r  rrhndr - 1 (2.9)i 
Lcgal and orhcr cosrs 

rclarcd ro Sphcrc l h k c  4.4 1.3 ! 

In 1990. the Cornpan!. rccci\.cd tax rct i~nds, inc lud ing 

intcrcst, in the U n i t c d  K i n g d o m  amoun t i ng  tu $2.9 mil-  

l ion.  Th is  sct t lcmcnt rclatcs principally to thc  u t i l im t i on  
nf pr io r  years' losscs and  the tax dcduct ih i l i ty  n f c c r t a n  

itcnis relating tn Alcrandcr H n a d e n ' s  u n d c n w i t i n g  

operations. 

11. Cont ingenc ies  

The  G m i p a n y  and i ts suhsidiarics x r  suhjcct to v x i o u s  

claims and  lawsuits t i o m  ixxh p r i n t c  and  gnvcrnmcnral  

px t i cs  in the ordinary conrs-sc of husincss, cmsis t ing  
principally ofallcgcd errors anti oniissions in c<mncct ion 

w i t h  the  placcmcnt of insurancc and in rendering con- 

sol t ingscn~iccs.  In  sonic of thcsc cascs, t hc  rcmcdics that 

may hc  snught o r  damages claimcd arc suhsr~nt ia l .  A d d -  

tionally, the  G m p a n y  and i ts suhsidiarics arc suhjcct t o  

t l i c  risk of losses result ing f r om the y r t cn t i a l  uncollcc- 

tihilit) of insurancc and rcinsorancc halmccs and claims 

advances made on hcha l fo fc l i rn ts .  

Fol lnwing the acquisition of Alcxdndcr H o w d e n  in 
January 1982. certain claims, rclating primarily t o  thc  

placrment of rcinsunncc b y  A l c r m d e r  Houdrn suhsid- 

iaries and qucst iomhlc h m k i n g  and undcnvr i t ing pnct iccr 

o f  fornmr Alcrandcr H o w d c n  nt ic ia ls and others, were 

asserted. In particular, claims ha\.c k e n  asserted against 

the Campany and certain of i ts subsidiaries alleging. 

among o thcr  things. that ccrtain of the Compmy's suh- 

sidiarics accepted, on behalf nf certain insurancc corn- 

panics, insunncr  or rcinsuranrc at p r cm ium lcvcls n o t  

comnicnsuratc w i t h  thc  lc\,cl of undenvr i t inp risks 

assumcd and rctroccdcd or reinsured those risks with 
financially unsound reinsurance companies. In nvn pelid- 

ing actions, p l a i n t i 6  seek compenutory  dnd p u n i t i w  



Jnmagcs totaling $69 rnilliori h s c d  o n  rrchlc d ~ m q c  
claims undcr the Rxkctccr Intlucnccd and ( imxpt  
Organizations Act (RICO). k la tcd  a~ t ions  2nd ~ la ims  
contain a \.aricq ofs imi l~r  allcgtions and scck trchlc dam- 
.~gcs. In lkccmhcr 1991. onc of thrsc rclatcd acthms WAS 
scttlcd with such xttlcmcnt cwcred hy thc Compmy's 
prnfessiond indemnity insurmcc prngram. Mmagcmcnt 
of the Company hclirvcs that rhcrc are valid dcfcnsrs t o  
dl thc claims that have bccn niadc with rcspcct t o  tlicsc 
activities. The Company is \.ignmusly dcfcnding thr  
pending actions 

In 1987, thc Cimpany s d d  its dorncsric undcnvriring 
mandgmcnt  suhsidian. S h m d  Morahan & G,mp.iny, 
Inc. (Shand). The  proceeds includcd a dcfcrrcri paymcnt 
ofS29.3 million plus interest. due in 1992, which is suh- 
jcct t o  ntYFcr hascd upon the adequacy of rhc  loss rcscncs 
and reinsurance rccovcrahlcs recorded, as of Dcccmhcr 
31, 1986, on thc hnoks of E\.mston S c n k s  Inc. (ESI), 
3 52%-on.ncd insurancc undrnvriring suhsidian of 
Shand at date ofsalc. In addition, the Company has 
agrmd t o  indrmnifi thc purchasers nf S h m d  adginst ccr- 
rain conringcncics, including the Mutual Fire, Marinc 
and Inland Insurmce Company contingency dcscrihcd 
hcloa.  

The  Company rccordcd a $ 1 0 9  mdlion pn,\.~siwi in 
1988 rclating to rhc indcmnirirs giacn hy the Company. 
Thc  pnwision rcsultcd frnm detc~ioration in loss rcscncr 
and additinnal uncollectihlc reinsurance hAuiccs 
rcpnrtcd t o  thr  Company hy F-SI, as wcll .is the Corn- 
pany's csrimate of additional dctcrioration hascd on the 
vnlatile narurc o f  FSI's bcmk ofhusinrss which includes 
Inng-duration liability cxpsurcs .  In addition. as i n d -  
catcd in Note 2, thc G m p i n y ' s  fourth quarter 1991 
spccial charge includes $10 million for pssihlc  indcmni- 
tics t o  purchaxrs of formcr A M  husincsscs. 

In Ocrnhcr 1991. rlic Company was nnrificd hy the 
porcliascrs of Shand that sipificant additional dcterinra- 
tion in loss rcscncs 2nd uncollccrihlc rcinsurmcc hal- 
anccs has occurred. Rased upon the purchaser's 
nonhinding cstimatc, a writc-otfof the total dcfcrrcd 
paynirnt balancc would hc rcquircd 

T h r  Company d i s q c c s  wirh certain of the mcthodr 
and assumptions uscd hy thc porch~scr  in calculating 
thcir csrimate o f  rhc indcmnity and has amcludcd that 
rhcir estimate is overstated. Thc  Company has a p p i n r r d  
indcpcndcnt acruarics and accountants t o  rcscrlrc rhis 
mattcr in accordance with the terms o f t h c  salcs 
agrcenicnt. 

Prior to its salc in 1987. Shand and its ruhsidiarics 
provided undcnvriting management scn.icrs for and 
placcd insurance and reinsurance with and on hchalfof 

the hturual Firc. Mnrinc and Inland Insurance Companv 
(Mutual Firc). Mutual Fire was placed in ruliahiliration 
hy the G,urts n f rh r  O,mrnona,calth of Pennsylvrnia in 
1)ccrrnhcr 1986. In l a n u ~ r y  1990. rhc Supcn.isn? (:ourt 
apprmcci a plan of rrh.~hiliration h r  M u r u ~ l  Firc. l ' hc  
rchahilitarnr. in F c h n ~ a n  1991. tiled a complaint i n  the 
comrnonwcalth court against S h a d  and rhc Company. 
The complaint allcgcs that Shand, and in ccrtain rcspcrrs 
thr  Compmy, h r e d ~ u d  durics to. and Jgrcemcnrs wirh. 
Mutu.d Firc. In addition t o  claimingconipcns?ton dam- 
ages, the complaint seeks puni1ii.c d~rnagrs  mri recoven 
nf ccmin commissions p i d  t o  Shand and thc Company. 
The complaint docs not specie, t o  an,  mc~ningl id  
degree, the amount ofallcgcd damages incunrd or  
snughr. Othcr claims haw hccn o r  may hc asserted by 
other affcctcd parties, including insurcds of Mutual Firr, 
d a r i n g  t o  rMurual Firr tranucrions. 

The sales cnntract hcr\\.cen the Conlpdn!. . ~ n d  S1i.ind's 
purch~scrs ohligates the (hmpany t o  cc r t in  indcmnirlc\ 
w r h  rcspcct t o  transxtinns in\.crl\.ing Muru.d Firr. .Ma- 
agement hclicvcs that rhcrc arc valid dcfcnscs t o  rhc allc- 
gatinns set forth in thc complaint and the Cbmpany 
intrnds t o  vigorously defend against rhrsc x t ions .  

Thcsc amtingent liahilitics involve signiticant 
amounts. Whilc it is nor pssihlc  t o  prcdicr wirh ccr- 
tainty the ootcomc ofsuch contingent liahilitics, the 
applicahiliy of covcragc tbr such rnattcrs undcr thc 
( i m p m y ' s  professional indemnity insurance program, 
o r  thcir financial impact on rhc G m p a n y .  m.inagcmcnr 
prcscntl! hclicvcs that such m p x t  will nnt hc material t o  
the Gmpany ' s  financial conriitlon 

12. Litigation Sct t lcmcnt  

In Novmmhcr 1986, thc ( i m p a n y  scttled its Iavsuit, 
which commcnccd in 1983. against ccrtan tixmcr audi- 
t o n  of Alcxandcr Howdrn.  T h r  tcrnms of thc scttlomcnt 
includcd thc paymcnt ofS24.0 million t o  the G m p a n y .  
Recognition ofthis rcco\.cn in thc Consolidated Statc- 
mcnts of Incomc has been deferred pcnding final rcsch-  
tion of spccitic loss amtingcncies arisingout of the 
Alcxandcr Howdcn acquisition which wcrc known at thc 
ddrr of the s ~ t t l m l ~ r l t .  The anlollnt of the T C C O I ~ C ~  is 
includcd in Orhcr Long-tcrni Liahilitics in thu Com- 
pany's (:onsolidated Kalrncr Shrer. 

In 1987. the Company's ~t icr- tar  contribution t o  the 
scttlcmcnt offircd to mcrnhcrs of I.loyd's syndic~rcs fbr- 
mcrly managed hy I'CM' Undcnvriting Agencics I. td 
was charged against this rccovcy and. accordingly, thr  
amount dcferrcd was reduccd t o  ipproximarcly $22.3 
million 



13. Businens Scgmmts 

Scgmcnt information is provided for thc Company's rwo 
reportable segments, Insurance Scrviccs and Human 
Resource Managcmcnt Consulting. Cxrtain prior pcriod 
amounts have heen restated t o  conform with the current 
year presentation 

Insurancc Scrviccs operations includr rctail. wholesale 
and reinsurance hroking and risk managcmcnt. The 
Company's cxtcnsivc services perniit it t o  handle diver.% 
lincs of coverage. Operating income in 1991 includes the 
special rhargcs dcscribcd in Norc 2. 

Burinas Segments: 
1991 
lnsurancc wvicra 
Human rruurcr managcmcnr consulring 
Gmcral rorporatc 

1990 
lnsunncc wrwces 
Human rcrourcc managrment consulting 
Gcncd zlorporatc 

Insunnrc unites $1.077.5 1 
Human rcsource manapmcnt consulting 171.4 1 
Gcncri corpontc 

Human Resource Managcmcnt Consulting includes a 
variety o f  human resource management consulting scr- 
vices, including actuarial and hcnefit plan consulting scr- 
vices, flcxiblc cnmpcnsation consulting, communications 
and managcmcnt consulting services and executive plan- 
ning services, as well as human resource organizational 
analysis and planning. 

The following tahlcs prescnt information ahout the 
Company's operations hy husiness segment and geo- 
gaphical areas for each of the three years in thc p e r i d  
ended December 31. 1991: 



Unircd States 
United Kingdom 
Canada, principally k c d  S t e n h o u ~  C05. Ltd. 
Othcr counnia 
Gennal corporate 

1990 
United States 
Unitcd Kingdom 
Canada, principally Rmd Stcnhouv Cos. Ltd. 
Othcr counmcr 
Gcncral corporate 

1989 
United Starcs 
Unitcd Kingdom 
Canada, principally k e d  Srcnhou~  Cos. Ltd. 
Othcr countria 
Gcncral colporacc 



14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 
Quarterly operating results for 1991 and 1990 arc summarized below (in millions, except per sharc data). The  first quancr o f  
1991 has been restated tiom amounts D ~ ~ V ~ O U S ~ V  r e ~ o n c d  t o  rctlcct thc adoption ofSFAS No. 106 relating t o  dcfcrrcd . , 
compensation expense as dcscrihed in Notc 7. 

Pcr Sham of Common S t ~ k :  
1991 
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Board of Directors & Officers, 
Major Subsidiaries and Operating Units 

Dr. Kcnncrh R l x k ,  Jrc2ir ' l  

@&nts' P~fimr~j'lnrurntm 
~ m f f a  . S ~ R  Lrnn.mr? 

\VilIiam M. Wilson 
I)rpue Clmimmn 

em I-kcuriw VKC Pnsultrr 

Dr. Rr,hcrr E.  Rnn!~l"'''+ 

Rnn M'. Fomcqr 
.%,rim lkt I '~mdt , , t  
AlcaridPr C* Alrrar~+ .(015ics 

1.u. 
(%ni,wur,t 
t? C ~ h t i f t I w u t i w  (?ffim 

Ahm& Cr Alr .w?h I lu. 

A n g n  X1.M Gross~ri",'l' 
.tia,uy)r?g Ilmitm 
~Vdtle L'?mmr Limited 
iA L'K,  rmschant bank.) 

Alcsandrr Consult ing C h i r p  
Inc .  



Investor Information 

Cmpar**cadsua- 
Alexander & Alcxander Scrviccs Inc. 

121 1 Avenue of the Americas 
New York. N.Y. 10036 

(212) 840-8500 

Annual M e t i w  OpSmkhoLIcrr 
Date: Thursday, May 14, 1992 

Time: 9:30a.m.  

Placc: Thc  Equitable Ccntcr 

Auditnrium 

787 Sercnth Avenue (between 

West Sls t  and West 52nd Sts.) 

New York. N.Y. 10019 

Apprtuimaa NumbrrofEipi~ 
h n ' t y  Holdm 
AsofMarch 2, 1992, there were 

apprnxirnatcly 2.604 r c a x d  holden 

of the Company's common s t ~ k ,  
776 bcncticial holders of Class A 

common stock and 1.51 3 rccord 

holders of Class C common stock 

Smk I,im'w 
Alexander & Alexander common 

stock is listed o n  the N c n  York and 
Inndon  stock exchanges, and its 

Class C common stock is listed on the 

1.ondon stock exchange. Rred 
Stenhoosc's RSC Special Class 1 stock 

is listed o n  the Tnronto and Montreal 

stock c rchanps .  

Alcxandcr & Alcrandrr common 

s r ~ k  is tradcd on thc Ncw York 

Stock Exchange under the syrnhnl 
AAI.. 

N o h  ofFmm 10-K 
A copy of the Company's 1991 
AnnuaJ Rcport o n  Form 10-K may he 

serurcd hy writing to:  

Alexander & Alexander 

Services Inc. 

Corporate Secrctan 

10461 Mill Run Circle 

Owings Mills, Md.  21 117 

Imrmrr,  bankers, rrcrrrity a~!vm and 
o thm dcsiriwadditiaal infamatirm 
should cmmct: 

Frank R Wicczynski 

Secrctay 

(410) 363-5802 

T r a ~ A g c " b a " d ~ m r n  
First C h i n g o  Tmst Gxnpany of 

N e u  Ynrk 

30 West Rroadwa). 

New York, N.Y. 10007-2192 

Thc Rnyal 'Tnlst Company 

48150 Cannon St.  

I n n d o n  EC4N 61J) 

England 

Mnntrcal Trwt  Cnrnpany <)(Canada 

151 Front Srrret Wcst 
Toronto. Ontario M51 2 x 1  

Canada 

Audrmrr 
Deloitte & Touche 



A&A Around the World 

Anguilla 

Antigua & Barbuda 
Argentina 

Amba 

Australia 
Austria 

Bahamas 

Bahrain 

Barhados 

Belgium 

Bermuda 

Bolivia 
Botswana 

Brazil 

British urgin Islands 

Canada 
Cayman Islands 

Chile 

China 
Colomhia 

Cosra Rica 

Curacao 

Cyprus 

Denmark 
Djibouti 

Dominica 
Dominican Repuhlic 

Ecuador 

@?pt 
Fiji 

Finland 

Francc 

Germany 

Greece 
Grenada 

Guadeloupe 

Guateniala 
Guyana 

Haiti 

H o n g  Kong 

India 

Indonesia 

Ireland 

Israel 

Italy 
Jamaica 

Japan 
Kenya 
Kuwait 

Luxembourg 
Malawi 

Malaysia 
Malta 

Mcaicn 

Montscrrat 
Morocco 

Netherlands 

Ncw Zealand 

Nigeria 

Norway 

Oman 

Pakistan 

Panama 

Papua Now Guinea 

Paraguay 

PCN 
Philippines 

Portugal 

Pucrro Rico 
Qatar 

St. Kitts & Ncvis 

St. Lucia 

St.  V~ncent  & the Grenadines 
Saudi Arabia 

Singapore 

South Korea 
Spain 

Sri Lanka 

Suriname 

Swaziland 

Swedcn 

Switzerland 

Taiwan 

Thailand 
Trinidad & Tohago 

Turkc! 

Turks & Caicos Islands 
United Arab Emimtcs 

United Kingdom 

Unitcd States 

U n ~ g u a y  
U S .  Islands 

Venezuela 

Zaire 

Zimbabwe 





CORPOWE HEADQUARTEM 

ALEXANDER& ALEXANDERSERVICES INC 

121 1 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS 

NEW YORK, N.Y. 10036 


